Public Document Pack
Boston Borough Council
Chief Executive
PHIL DRURY
MCIAT, ACIOB

Municipal Buildings
Boston
Lincolnshire
PE21 8QR
Tel: Tel 01205 314227
Fax:

My ref: MG/KR/Planning
Please ask for: Karen Rist Democratic Services Officer (Direct number 01205 314226)
Monday, 2 December 2019

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Committee
on Tuesday, 10 December 2019 at 10.00 am
in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR

PHIL DRURY
Chief Executive
Chairman: Councillor Tom Ashton
Vice Chair: Councillor Frank Pickett
Councillors: Alison Austin, Peter Bedford, Michael Cooper, Paul Goodale, Jonathan Noble,
Brian Rush, Chelcei Sharman, Paul Skinner, Yvonne Stevens, Peter Watson and
Stephen Woodliffe

Note(s) for Members of the Committee:
In order to vote on a planning application committee Members must be present for the entire
presentation and discussion on the item.

When an official site visit is undertaken which forms part of the decision making at Committee,
only Members who have attended the site visit and received full representation will be able to
debate and decide the application.

Members of the public are welcome to attend the committee meeting as observers
except during the consideration of exempt or confidential items.

This meeting may be subject to being recorded.

AGENDA
PART I - PRELIMINARIES
A

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any).

B

MINUTES

1 - 24

To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting.
C

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda.

D

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
To answer any written questions received from members of the public no
later than 5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this
meeting the deadline is 5 p.m. on Thursday 5 December 2019

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS
1

PLANNING APPLICATION B/18/0399

25 - 42

Proposed residential development consisting of 61 dwellings and construction
of new vehicular access and associated work.
Land to the west of 90, 92 and 94 Fenside Road Boston
Seagate Homes Ltd
2

PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0068
Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 4 dwellings with new access
and associated site works (revised plans, revised description).
118 Church Road Boston PE21 0LG
Mrs B Orrey

43 - 74

3

PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0307

75 - 86

Outline application for residential development (1 plot) with all matters
(Access, Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale) reserved for later
approval (amended application form)
Rear of Gunby House 21 Sibsey Road Boston PE21 9QY
Mrs D Moore.

Note: A planning decision comes into effect only when the decision notice
and associated documents are despatched by the Local Planning Authority
and not when the Committee makes its decision.

Notes:
The Human Rights Act 1998
It is implicit in these reports that the recommendations to and the consideration by Committee will
take into account the Council’s obligations arising out of the Human Rights Act and the rights
conferred by Articles 6,8,14 and Article 1 of the First Protocol of the European Convention on
Human Rights (ECHR). These are the rights to a fair hearing, respect for family and private life,
the prohibition against discrimination and the peaceful enjoyment of possessions, respectively.
The ECHR allows many to be overridden if there is a sufficiently compelling public interest.
In simple terms the Act requires a person’s interest be balanced against the interests of the
community. This is something that is part of the planning system and that balancing is a significant
part of the consideration of issues identified to Committee by officer reports. Provided that those
issues are taken into account, the Convention will be satisfied.
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Karen Rist Democratic
Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 8QR, Tel: 01205 314226, e-mail:
karen.rist@boston.gov.uk.
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Karen Rist as soon as
possible giving the name of the Council Member (if any) who will be attending the meeting as their
substitute.
Alternative Versions
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, Braille or
a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 314226

Emergency Procedures
In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building via
the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point located in
the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item B
15 OCTOBER 2019

PLANNING COMMITTEE
Present:
Chairman:
Vice-Chairman:

Councillor Tom Ashton
Councillor Frank Pickett

Councillors:

Alison Austin, Peter Bedford, Michael Cooper, Paul Goodale,
Jonathan Noble, Brian Rush, Yvonne Stevens, Peter Watson
and Judith Welbourn

Officers:

Growth Manager, Principal Planning Officer, Senior Planning
Officer, Senior Planning Officer, Legal Officer Planning and
Senior Democratic Services Officer

41

APOLOGIES

There were apologies for absence from Councillors Paul Skinner and Stephen
Woodliffe. Councillor Judith Welbourn was attending in place of Councillor Woodliffe.
42

MINUTES

The minutes of the Committee’s last meeting held on 17th September 2019 were agreed
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.
43

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Standing declarations of interest were noted as follows:





Councillors Tom Ashton and Alison Austin as Members of Lincolnshire County
Council.
Councillors Tom Ashton, Michael Cooper and Peter Bedford as Members of the
South East Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee, Councillor Jonathan
Noble as a Substitute Member of that Committee and Councillor Alison Austin as the
County Council representative on that Committee.
Councillors Tom Ashton, Frank Pickett, Peter Bedford and Michael Cooper as
representatives on the Internal Drainage Boards.

The following further declarations were made:
B/18/0435 – Councillor Yvonne Stevens declared a friendship with the former owner of
the site but had not spoken to them and this had no effect on her judgement of the
matter. Councillor Peter Bedford declared that the owner of the land had been known to
him for a number of years through membership of the Round Table but this did not
prejudice his judgement. Councillor Brian Rush declared that he knew the landowner
and had been lobbied but it had had no effect on his judgement.
B/19/0216 – All Members declared they had received communication on this application.
Councillor Alison Austin declared that she had called in the application, the site was in
her ward and one of the main objectors had made representation to her husband
Councillor Richard Austin as the Ward Member.

Page 1

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

B/19/298/LBC – All Members declared that this application was from a fellow Councillor;
this was the reason the application was before the Committee.
B/19/0283 – Councillor Yvonne Stevens declared she would stand down from the
Planning Committee for this application and speak as Ward Member.
B/19/0301 – Councillor Brian Rush declared that the application site was in his ward but
he had no connection to it and it did not concern him.
44

PUBLIC QUESTIONS

No questions had been received.
45

PLANNING APPLICATION B.18.0435

Demolition of dwelling and outbuildings; Outline planning permission for up to 43
no. residential dwellings (revised down from 46) with consideration given to
access (Appearance, Landscaping, Layout, and Scale reserved matters for later
approval)
Land North of Langrick Road, Boston, PE21 8H
Applicant: Oxygen
The Senior Planning Officer presented the report and advised the Committee of
amendments to the recommended conditions numbered 4 and 11 in the report. It was
recommended that condition 4 be amended to include an access plan, as the entrance
to the site had been resolved since the publication of the report, and that the third bullet
point of condition 11 be amended, to allow discharge rates be submitted to the
satisfaction of the local planning authority, i.e. not restricted to 1.4 litres per second, so
that this can form part of a detailed drainage design.
Mr A Rowse, Planning Consultant, spoke on behalf of the applicant as follows, in
summary. The proposal was for the sustainable development of an unattractive
brownfield site, a former depot site, which had been vacant for many years. It was
within an established residential area, within the settlement area and was a designated
housing area in the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (SELLP). Development had
been accepted in principle and the proposal would provide 43 dwellings towards the
Council’s 5-year housing supply and would substantially benefit the provision of
affordable housing, proposing that 10 of the 43 dwellings would be affordable, which
was higher than the 20% requirement of the SELLP.
[Councillor Paul Goodale arrived at 10.25 am – and it was identified that he could not
take part in the debate and consideration of the item]
Mr Rowse advised the Committee that a number of flood risk measures had been
agreed and the Environment Agency had no objections to the application. The
demolition of one existing dwelling would provide a safe and suitable access and
footway and the junction to Langrick Road would have adequate splays and safe
pedestrian crossing; the Highway Authority had no objections to the application.

Page 2

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

It was proposed by Councillor Brian Rush and seconded by Councillor Jonathan Noble
that planning permission be granted subject to the completion of the section 106
agreement relating to affordable housing as detailed in the report and the conditions
recommended by the Planning Officers with the amendments of conditions 4 and 11, as
stated.
Vote: Unanimous
RESOLVED: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the completion of
the section 106 agreement relating to affordable housing, as detailed in the report,
and the following conditions:
1.

No development shall commence until details of the layout, scale, appearance
and landscaping of the development (hereafter referred to as the 'reserved
matters') have been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority.
Reason: This is an outline application only and such details must be approved
before development commences in order to comply with the objectives of Policies
2 and 3 of the South east Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and required to be
imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

2.

Application for the first submission for approval of reserved matters shall be made
to the local planning authority not later than the expiration of three years from the
date of this permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

3.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of two
years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be
approved.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

4.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved site location plan ref: P/A 1444/05/01 [final wording to be amended in
line with recommendation]
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with
approved plans in accordance with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

5.

The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) dated May 2019 by
Farrow Walsh Consulting reference FW1599/FRA/001-V8 and the following
mitigation measures detailed within section 3.2 of the FRA including:

Page 3

Planning Committee
15 October 2019





Finished floor levels to be set no lower than 1.9m above Ordnance Datum
(AOD)
Ground floors of the dwellings to be restricted to non-habitable
accommodation
Flood resilience and resistance measures to be incorporated into the
proposed development as stated

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation of each
unit and subsequently remain in place.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future
occupants and to accord with Polices 2, 3, 4 and 31 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and the intentions of the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019).
6.

Prior to the construction of any building above damp proof course, a detailed
scheme for drainage and water infrastructure shall be submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include:



A scheme for the provision of mains foul sewerage infrastructure on and off
the site
Details of connection point(s) and discharge rate(s)

Prior to the occupation of any dwelling within any phase of the development, the
drainage and water infrastructure measures relating to that phase and dwelling
must have been carried out in complete accordance with the approved scheme.
Reason: To prevent environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding
and to accord with Polices 2, 3, 4 and 31 of the South East Lincolnshire Local
Plan (2011-2036) and the intentions of the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019)
7.

The water consumption of each dwelling hereby permitted should not exceed the
requirement of 110 litres per person per day (as set out as the optional
requirement in Part G of the Building Regulations 2010 and the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan, 2019). The person carrying out the work must inform the
Building Control Body that this duty applies. A notice confirming the requirement
for the water consumption has been met shall be submitted to the Building
Control Body and Local Planning Authority, no later than five days after the
completion of each individual dwelling.
Reason: To protect the quality and quantity of water resources available to the
district. This condition is imposed in accordance with Policy 31 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-0236).

8.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the submitted Preliminary Ecological
Appraisal prepared by Skilled Ecology Consultancy Limited (dated August 2018).

Page 4

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

Reason: To ensure that protected species and their habitats are protected and to
provide enhancements to biodiversity in accordance with Polices 2, 3 and 28 of
the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
9.

Prior to the commencement of development above slab level, final details of
measures that aim to reduce pollution and promote renewable and low carbon
energy (including measures such as facilities for EV car charging) and details
relating to the timing of their implementation, shall be submited to and approved
in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed
in accordance with the approved measures.
Reason: To help reduce pollution and promote renewable and low carbon energy
in new development schemes and to accord with Policies 2, 3 , 30 and 31 of the
South east Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and to accord with the intentions
of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019).

10.

Before any dwelling is occupied, all of that part of the estate road and associated
footways that forms the junction with the main road and which will be constructed
within the limits of the existing highway, shall be laid out and constructed to
finished surface levels in accordance with details to be submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of safety, to avoid the creation of pedestrian trip hazards
within the public highway from surfacing materials, manholes and gullies that may
otherwise remain for an extended period at dissimilar, interim construction levels.
This condition accords with Polices 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local
Plan (2011-2036).

11. Prior to the commencement any estate roads, final details of an estate road and
completion plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The plan shall include details of how the construction of the
development would be phased and standards to which the estate roads on each
phase will be completed during the construction period of the development. The
delivery of the estate roads shall be undertaken in accordance with the agreed
plan.
Reason: To ensure that a safe and suitable standard of vehicular and pedestrian
access is provided for residents throughout the construction period of the
development and to accord with Polices 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2011-2036).
12.

The permitted development shall be undertaken in accordance with a surface
water drainage scheme that shall first have been approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
The scheme shall:


Be based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the
hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development;

Page 5

Planning Committee
15 October 2019







Provide details of how run-off will be safely conveyed and attenuated
during storms up to and including the 1 in 100 year critical storm event,
with an allowance for climate change, from all hard surfaced areas within
the development into the existing local drainage infrastructure and
watercourse system without exceeding the run-off rate for the undeveloped
site;
Provide attenuation details and discharge rates to the satisfaction of the
local planning authority; [final wording to be amended in line with
recommendation]
Provide details of the timetable for any phasing of implementation for the
drainage scheme; and
Provide details of how the scheme shall be maintained and managed over
the lifetime of the development, including any arrangments for adoption by
any public body or statutory undertaker and any other arrangements
required to secure the operation of the drainage system throughout its
lifetime.

No dwelling shall be occupied until the approved scheme has been completed or
provided on the site in accordance with the approved phasing. The approved
scheme shall be retained and maintained in full in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is adequately drained
without creating or increasing flood risk to land or property adjacent to, or
downstream of, the development permitted. This condition accords with Policies
2, 3 and 4 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and the
intentions of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019)
13. Where an unacceptable risk or risks have been identified within the submitted risk
assessment, a detailed remediation strategy to deal with land contamination
and/or pollution of controlled waters affecting the site shall be submitted and
approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). No works, other than
investigative works, shall be carried out on the site prior to receipt of written
approval of the remediation strategy by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the proposed remediation plan is appropriate and to accord
with Policy 30 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
14. Remediation of the site shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
remediation strategy (see preceding condition). No deviation shall be made from
this scheme without the express written agreement of the Local Planning
Authority. (LPA).
Reason: To ensure site remediation is carried out to the agreed protocol and
to accord with Policy 30 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
15. Within two months of completion of remediation, two copies of a closure report
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The report shall provide
validation and certification that the required works regarding contamination have
been carried out in accordance with the approved Method Statement(s). Post

Page 6

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

remediation sampling and monitoring results shall be included in the closure
report.
Reason: To provide verification that the required remediation had been carried
out to the required standards and to accord with Policy 30 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
16. If during development, contamination not previously considered is identified, then
the Local Planning Authority (LPA) shall be notified immediately and no further
work shall be carried out until a method statement detailing a scheme for dealing
with suspect contamination has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure all contamination within the site is dealt with and to accord
with Policy 30 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
17. Prior to the commencement of the development above ground level, a
Construction Management Plan shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority
for approval in writing. The Construction Management Plan will prescribe how the
construction of the site will be phased, where site accommodation and welfare
facilities will be placed, hours of working, where site vehicles and the vehicles of
site personnel will be parked and where materials will be delivered and stored
within the site. Construction of the permitted development shall be undertaken in
accordance with the approved Construction Management Plan.
Reason: In the interests of the safety and free passage of the public, in the
interests of residential amenity and to accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the South
East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
Informatives
1.

All roads within the development hereby permitted must be constructed to an
engineering standard equivalent to that of adoptable highways. Those roads that
are to be put forward for adoption as public highways must be constructed in
accordance with the Lincolnshire County Council Development Road
Specification that is current at the time of construction and the developer will be
required to enter into a legal agreement with the Highway Authority under
Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980. Those roads that are not to be voluntarily
put forward for adoption as public highways, may be subject to action by the
Highway Authority under Section 219 (the Advance Payments code) of the
Highways Act 1980.

2.

Please contact the Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks and Permitting Team
on 01522 782070 to discuss any proposed statutory utility connections and any
other works which will be required within the public highway in association with
the development permitted under this Consent. This will enable Lincolnshire
County Council to assist in the coordination and timings of these works.

3.

The drainage strategy proposes SUDs attenuation ponds and a storm overflow to
a culverted drain. This strategy needs to consider the implications of the
contamination found on the site to ensure no pathway is created for site

Page 7

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

contaminants to contaminate the wider water environment. Specific advice should
be sort from the Environment Agency in this regards
46

PLANNING APPLICATION B.18.0528

85 dwellings with associated infrastructure including new estate roads, public
open space and attenuation ponds
Land adjacent and to the south of Hawthorn Tree School on the east side of Toot
Lane, Boston, PE21 0PT
Applicant: Lealand Homes Ltd & Gleeson Regeneration Ltd
The Senior Planning Officer presented the report and updated Members regarding the
Unilateral Undertaking (UU), which was currently being assessed by legal officers, and
would include the management of the public open space as well as the proposed
payment of a commuted sum in lieu of on-site provision of affordable housing. The UU
was subject to further discussions and, when finalised, could mean that conditions 9 and
10 would not be needed, with Officers requesting a resolution that allowed this to be
determined by Officers under Delegated Authority before the decision would be issued
Mrs H Randerson, Planning Manager for Gleeson Regeneration Ltd, addressed the
Committee in support of the application and, in summary, made the following points.
The company, which specialised in low-cost housing, with 65 sites across the north, set
prices carefully to ensure they were affordable, with help-to-buy schemes reducing the
cost to a level below local rents and had a policy of not selling to landlords. The
company was investing £7.2m in the scheme, with a significant amount for employment.
This was a community housing scheme, committed to employing local people, with
apprenticeship schemes, junior sports sponsorship, free-of-charge alterations for people
with disabilities and “Your Watch” neighbourhood watch schemes. Mrs Randerson
added thanks to the Planning Officers for their professionalism.
It was proposed by Councillor Michael Cooper and seconded by Councillor Alison Austin
that planning permission be granted as recommended by the Planning Officers, subject
to the completion of the section 106 agreement and conditions.
Vote: 9 for, 1 against
RESOLVED That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the completion of
the legal agreement (under S106) relating to the provision of affordable housing,
as detailed in the report, and the following conditions recommended by the
Planning Officers, with the exception that conditions 9 & 10 may be removed if the
matters relating to the public open space are included within the aforementioned
legal agreement and thus would not be required:
1

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 8

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

2

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:

















































Site location plan ref 3040-0-000
Proposed site layout ref 3040-0-001 U
Toot Lane section 38 Layout ref 02.01 rev B
Section 38 contour layout ref 02.02 rev A
Section 104 Layout ref 03 rev B
Typical highway construction details – sheet 1 of 2 ref 04.01 rev A
Typical highway construction details –sheet 2 of 2 ref 04.02
Longitudinal sections sheet 1 of 3 ref 06.01 rev A
S15 flow control manhole ref 12.02
Attenuation basin layout and location plan ref 14.01 rev A
Attenuation basin – section and details – sheet 1 of 2 ref 14.02 rev A
Attenuation basin- sections and details –sheet 2 of 2 ref 14.03 rev A
Typical swale layout – sections and details – ref 14.04 rev B
Swale location layout ref 14.05 rev A
Swale and outlet layout ref 14.06 rev A
Surfacing layout ref 15
Kerbing layout ref 16
Vehicle tracking ref 18
Drainage feasibility layout ref SK02 rev C
Type 201 – elevations (urban 13) ref 13/201-02 rev D
201 dwelling type ref 201/1F
Type 202 – elevations (urban 13) ref 13/202-02 rev E
202 dwelling type ref 202/1F
Type 212 elevations (urban 13) ref 13/212-02 rev A
212 dwelling type ref 212/1Type 301 – elevations (urban) ref 13/301-02 rev E
301 dwelling type ref 301/1G
Type 303 elevations (urban) ref 13/303 -02 rev E
303 dwelling type ref 303/1E
Type 304 elevations (urban 13) ref 13/304-02 rev F
304 dwelling type ref 304/1E
Type 307 elevations (urban 13) ref 13/307 -02 rev E
307 dwelling type ref 307/1B
Type 309 elevations (urban 13) ref 13/309 -02 rev C
309 dwelling type ref 309/1E
Type 310 elevations (urban 13) ref 13/310-02 rev C
310 dwelling type ref 310/1D
313 dwelling type ref 313/1314 dwelling type ref 314/1Type 401 elevations (urban 13) ref 13/401 -02 rev C
401 dwelling type ref 401/1G
Type 403 elevations (urban 13) ref 13/403-02 rev B
403 dwelling type ref 403/1G
Detailed landscape proposals (1 of 2) ref 2882/1
Detailed landscape proposals (2 of 2)
Materials schedule (as amended) revision 2
Boundary treatments – 1800mm high timber fence ref SD-100 rev E
Boundary details –post and wire fence ref SD 103 rev B

Page 9

Planning Committee
15 October 2019






Detached garage details- single- ref SD 700 rev A
Detached garage details –double- ref SD 701 rev A
Garage threshold/crushed aggregate drive details ref SD712 rev G
Play equipment details ref PL4782/6815/1 - indicative

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the
approved details and to accord with policies 2 and 3 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
3

All landscape works shown on plans ref 2882/1 rev B and 2882/2 rev B shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details within 6 months of the date of
the first occupation of any building or completion of development whichever is the
sooner. Any trees, plants, grassed areas which within a period of 5 years from the
date of planting die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall
be replaced in the first available planting season with others of similar size species
or quality.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and design quality and to ensure that
the approved scheme is implemented satisfactorily in accordance with policies 2
and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

4

Before each dwelling is occupied, the roads and footways providing access to
that dwelling, for the whole of its frontage from an existing public highway, shall
be constructed to a specification to enable them to be adopted as Public
Highway, less the carriageway and footway surface courses. The carriageway
and footway surface courses shall be completed within three months from the
date upon which the erection is commenced of the penultimate dwelling.
Reason: To ensure that a safe and suitable standard of vehicular and pedestrian
access is provided for residents throughout the construction period of the
development and that the roads and footways are completed within a reasonable
period following completion of the dwellings. This condition accords with the
objectives of policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (20112036)

5

No dwelling shall be commenced before the first 50 metres of estate road from its
junction with the public highway, including visibility splays, as illustrated on
drawing number 102.001 02.01 Rev. B dated 09.03.19, have been completed.
Reason: To ensure construction and delivery vehicles, and the vehicles of site
personnel may be parked and/or unloaded off the existing highway, in the
interests of highway safety and the amenity of neighbouring residents. This
condition accords with the objectives of policies 2 and 3 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

6

Before any dwelling is occupied, all of that part of the estate road and associated
footways that forms the junction with the main road and which will be constructed
within the limits of the existing highway, shall be laid out and constructed to
finished surface levels in accordance with details to be submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.

Page 10

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

Reason: In the interests of safety, to avoid the creation of pedestrian trip hazards
within the public highway from surfacing materials, manholes and gullies that may
otherwise remain for an extended period at dissimilar, interim construction levels.
This condition accords with the objectives of policies 2 and 3 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
7

The permitted development shall be undertaken in accordance with a surface
water drainage scheme which shall first have been approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
The scheme shall:


be based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the
hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development.



provide details of how run-off will be safely conveyed and attenuated during
storms up to and including the 1 in 100 year critical storm event, with an
allowance for climate change, from all hard surfaced areas within the
development into the existing local drainage infrastructure and watercourse
system without exceeding the run-off rate for the undeveloped site;



provide attenuation details and discharge rates which shall be restricted to
1.4 litres per second;



provide details of the timetable for and any phasing of implementation for
the drainage scheme; and



provide details of how the scheme shall be maintained and managed over
the lifetime of the development, including any arrangements for adoption by
any public body or Statutory Undertaker and any other arrangements
required to secure the operation of the drainage system throughout its
lifetime.

No dwelling shall be occupied until the approved scheme has been completed or
provided on the site in accordance with the approved phasing. The approved
scheme shall be retained and maintained in full, in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: To ensure that the permitted development is adequately drained without
creating or increasing flood risk to land or property adjacent to, or downstream of,
the permitted development. This condition accords with the objectives of policies
2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
8

The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) January 2019
/102/001/FRA_v1.3 / Walker Ingram Associates and the following mitigation
measures detailed within the FRA:


Finished floor levels to be set no lower than 1m above existing ground levels

Page 11

Planning Committee
15 October 2019



Flood resilience and resistance measures to be incorporated into the
proposed development as stated, where finished floor levels are less than
1.3m above existing ground levels

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and
subsequently remain in place.
Reason To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future
occupants. This condition accords with the objectives of policy 4 of the South
East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
9

The proposed areas of equipped public open space as shown on plan Proposed
site layout REF 3040-0-001 U shall be laid out and equipped, in a manner to be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be
made available for use in accordance with timescales which shall be agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority before occupation of any dwelling.
Reason: To provide a satisfactory level of publicly available amenity open space
within the development and to accord with the objectives of Policy 32 of the South
East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

10

A landscape management plan including management responsibilities and
maintenance schedules of the public open space and equipment shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority before the occupation of any dwelling.
The management plan shall be carried out as approved.
Reason: To ensure the long term maintenance of the public open space in the
interests of the amenity of residents and to accord with the objectives of Policy 32
of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

11

Before occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved, the shared private
drives shall be provided with lighting in accordance with details, including the
maintenance of the lighting, which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To provide adequate lighting, in the interest of crime prevention and
community safety. This condition accords with the objectives of policies 2 and 3 of
the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

12

The development hereby permitted shall be undertaken in accordance with the
mitigation measures and recommendations of the ecology report (SLR Version 3
dated November 2018). Notwithstanding this, no development shall commence
on site above slab level until details of measures to enhance the biodiversity of
the site as a consequence of the development, together with a timescale for
implementation have been submitted to and approved by the local planning
authority. The works thereafter shall proceed in accordance with the approved
details and any agreed enhancement measures shall be delivered in full prior to
the occupation of the penultimate dwelling on site.

Page 12

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

Reason: In the interests of realising a biodiversity enhancement of the site in
accordance with the objectives of policy 28 of the South East Lincolnshire Local
Plan (2011-2036).
13

No development shall commence on site above slab level until details relating to
the provision of fire hydrant(s) have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The fire hydrant(s) as may be approved by the Local
Planning Authority shall be installed prior to the occupation of any dwelling on the
permitted development.
Reason: In the interests of public safety and to accord with the objectives of
policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

14

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved Construction Management Plan (3094-0-000 received 3/10/19), in
particular deliveries to the site shall not take place between 8.15 am to 9.15am
and 3pm and 4pm.
Reason: In the interests of public safety and to accord with the objectives of
policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

15

Prior to the commencment of development above slab level, final details of
measures that aim to reduce pollution and promote renewable and low carbon
energy (including measures such as facilities for EV car charging) and details
relating to the timing of their implementation, shall be submitted to and approved
in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed
in accordance with the approved measures.
Reason: To help reduce pollution and promote renewable and low carbon energy
in new development schemes and to accord with Policies 2, 3 , 30 and 31 of the
South east Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and to accord with the intentions
of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019).

16

The water consumption of each dwelling hereby permitted should not exceed the
requirement of 110 litres per person per day (as set out as the optional
requirement in Part G of the Building Regulations 2010 and the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan, 2019).
The person carrying out the work must inform the Building Control Body that this
duty applies.
A notice confirming the requirement for the water consumption has been met
shall be submitted to the Building Control Body and Local Planning Authority, no
later than five days after the completion of each individual dwelling.
Reason: To protect the quality and quantity of water resources available to the
district. This condition is imposed in accordance with Policy 31 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

Page 13

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

17

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved Archaeological Mitigation Strategy SLR ref 406.03044.00121 Version 1
dated August 2019.
Reason: In order to ensure that satisfactory arrangements are made for the
investigation, retrieval and recording of any possible archaeological remains on
the site and to accord with the objectives of policy 29 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

18

No development shall commence on site above slab level until details of the
proposed foul pumping station and the substation as identified on the approved
layout plan ref 3040-0-001 U has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The works shall be carried out as approved.
Reason: No details have been submitted, and to ensure the development is
undertaken in accordance with the approved details and to accord with policies 2
and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

In determining this application, the authority has taken account of the guidance in
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2018 in order to seek to secure
sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the Borough
47

PLANNING APPLICATION B.19.0216

Approval of reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and
scale)following outline approval B/17/0167 (Residential development of up to 6
dwellings)
Land off Carmel Green, Boston, PE21 7JR
Applicant: Mr B French
The Senior Planning Officer presented the report and advised the Committee of an
amendment to paragraph 2.5 of the report, in that the application included the erection
of five detached garages to serve the proposed houses on plots 1-4 and plot 6; the
proposed garage to be attached to the proposed dwelling would serve plot 5.
Members confirmed that they had received a further letter from the owner of 4 Carmel
Green, received since the publication of the agenda pack, and the Senior Planning
Officer advised them to take this into account as a material consideration.
Mr C Wicks, the applicant’s agent, addressed the Committee and made the following
points. The proposal already had outline permission and the footprints of the proposed
dwellings were clearly two-storey. With respect to the concerns of the occupiers of the
bungalows, the design of plot 6 had been changed so the bungalow at No. 2 would have
clear views. All four bungalows would have totally acceptable views. There would be
30m between the house and the nearest dwelling. The Senior Planning Officer had
expressed the view that the proposal was totally acceptable in planning terms. Although
objectors felt that the proposed dwellings should be bungalows, the Environment

Page 14

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

Agency did not agree with there being habitable rooms on the ground floor of new
dwellings in this location.
Houses formed part of the character of the area and the Planning Inspector agreed,
having allowed planning permission for a house nearby just recently. The proposed
dwellings were family homes. The application had previously stated that the proposal
was for dwellings and it would not be possible to fit 6 bungalows on the site.
Outline permission had been granted subject to a section 106 agreement relating to an
off-site financial contribution for enhancements to sports provision and improvements at
Garfit’s Lane of up to £18,000 (i.e. £3000 per dwelling); if the dwellings were to be
bungalows, it could be argued there would be no requirement for a donation.
In conclusion, Mr Wicks commended the scheme to the Committee, as it would provide
much-needed housing and the applicant was ready to proceed with the development
immediately.
It was proposed by Councillor Jonathan Noble and seconded by Councillor Peter
Bedford that planning permission be granted, as recommended by the Planning Officers
in their report.
Vote: Unanimous
RESOLVED that planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following
conditions and reasons:
1

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with
the application received 28-May-2019 and in accordance with the associated
plans as amended referenced:











1-200 Proposed Site Layout Plan. Ref 19-2450-P-02B
Elevations and layout Plot 1 ref 19-2450-P-03B
Garage Details to Plot 1 Ref 19-2450-P-04A
Elevations and layout Plots 2 & 3 Ref 19-2450-P-05B
Garage Details to Plots 2, 3, 4 & 6. Ref 19-2450 P-06A
Elevations and layout Plot 4 Ref 19-2450-P-07B
Elevations and layout Plot 5. Ref 19-2450-P- 09B
Elevations and layout Plot 6. Ref 19-2450-P-10D
Landscape Specification. Ref 19-2450-P-11
1-1250 Location Plan. Ref 19-2450-P-12

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the
approved details and to accord with policies 2 and 3 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
2

No development shall take place above ground level until details of the materials
proposed to be used in the construction of the external surfaces to be used in the
construction of the dwellings have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

Page 15

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

Reason: To ensure the development assimilates within the area and to accord
with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
3

No development shall take place above ground level until details of the proposed
attenuation pond including a cross section plan shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: No details have been submitted with this application, in the interests of
the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and satisfactory drainage. This condition
accords with the objectives of Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2011-2036).

4

All landscape works as indicated by the approved plans (condition 1) shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details within 6 months of the date of
the first occupation of any building or completion of development whichever is the
sooner. Any trees, plants, grassed areas which within a period of 5 years from
the date of planting die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the first available planting season with others of similar size
species or quality.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and design quality and to ensure that
the approved scheme is implemented satisfactorily in accordance with policies 2
and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

In determining this application, the authority has taken account of the guidance in
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to seek to secure
sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the Borough.
48

PLANNING APPLICATION B.19.0301

Single storey extension
Windy Ridge Veg Ltd Office, Hubberts Bridge Road, Kirton, Boston, PE20 1TW
Applicant: Mr Mark Nundy
The Senior Planning Officer presented the report.
It was proposed by Councillor Tom Ashton and seconded by Councillor Alison Austin
that planning permission be granted as recommended by the Planning Officers.
Vote: Unanimous
RESOLVED that planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following
conditions and reasons:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Page 16

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Complsory Purchase Act 2004.
2.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with
the application received 16-July-2019 and in accordance with the associated
plans referenced:


Proposed plans - WR/1

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the
approved details and to accord with policies 2 and 3 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
3.

The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) submitted with the
application including those mitigation measures specified. The mitigation
measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and subsequently remain
in place.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future
occupants and to accord with the objectives of policy 4 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

In determining this application, the authority has taken account of the guidance in
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to seek to secure
sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the Borough.
49

PLANNING APPLICATION B.19.0298/LBC

Listed Building consent to make necessary repairs to stone mouldings on the
principle facade of the building
Former Sessions House, Church Close, Boston, PE21 6NA
Applicant: Dellhaven Homes Limited
The Growth Manager presented the report.
It was proposed by Councillor Jonathan Noble and seconded by Councillor Alison Austin
that planning permission be granted as recommended by Planning Officers in the report.
Vote: Unanimous
RESOLVED that Listed Building Consent be GRANTED subject to the following
conditions:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Page 17

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to paragraph 18 of the Town &
Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
2.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:



Site Location Plan 179-001 July 2019
South Elevation with Proposed Work Notes 179-100 July 2019

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the
approved details, in the interest of residential amenity and to comply with Policies
2, 3 and 29 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
3.

Notwithstanding Condition No. 2 of this Consent, no works shall take place until a
sample panel identifying the approach to the repairs has been constructed on site
for inspection by the Local Planning Authority and details of the stonework and
mortar work (including a specification for a mortar mix) to be used in the repairs
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Only the approved stonework and mortar mix shall be used, in accordance with
any terms of such approval.
Reason: In order to ensure a sympathetic relationship with the character of the
listed building in accordance with Policies 2 and 29 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2011-2036) and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990.

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority has taken account of the
guidance in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to
seek to secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and
environmental conditions of the Borough.
50

RECEIPT OF APPEAL DECISIONS - OCTOBER 2019

The Growth Manager presented a report, which advised Members of the receipt of
appeal decisions received since the last meeting, and highlighted that the authority
remained well within its performance targets.
In addition, following a review of recent appeal decisions received and comments made
generally by Members, Officers had written to the Planning Inspectorate outlining some
areas of concerns. A response had been received from the Planning Inspectorate, and
both documents were provided along with this report for Members information. Whilst
clearly disappointed with the response, Officers believed it was helpful in providing
greater clarity in respect of the Inspectors’ approach to decision-taking.
In conclusion, Officers would continue to review all Appeal decisions received, and
where such decisions appeared to be irregular, would consider obtaining the necessary
legal advice in respect of potential for challenge. They would also continue to review the
approaches adopted by Inspectors, and their rationale in respect of decision-taking.
However, it is also hoped that decisions would become more consistent as future
appeals would be determined against the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan, and its
associated background documents, as the starting point.

Page 18

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

During Members’ debate, there was a difference of opinion regarding the outcome of the
appeal on Application B/18/0346. One Member welcomed it. Others considered the
Planning Officers were right to challenge this as it was factually incorrect - the Planning
Inspector stated that there was no 5-year housing supply, but in Members’ view this was
in place and was being delivered well. The letter to the Planning Inspectorate was
commended; decisions had not been consistent and the Planning Inspector had not
given sufficient weight to the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan, which, it was
recognised, should be the starting point for consideration of applications.
Members recognised that the Planning Officers took Members through the various risks
associated with decisions, including costs, and were pleased with performance, as few
decisions proceeded to appeal.
In response to questions, the Growth Manager explained that applicants could apply for
award of costs, but they would have to demonstrate that the local planning authority had
acted unreasonably and this had certainly not been the case. External legal advice was
sought from Counsel when necessary and, depending on the opinion, a decision would
be made as to whether it would be worth challenging an Inspector’s decision, weighing
up all aspects, including costs.
The Growth Manager confirmed that the Planning Inspectorate had been reviewed
recently and was the subject of an improvement programme at Government level, they
had appointed more Inspectors and were looking at changes to processes, and this
should improve the speed and quality of the decisions, as explained the Planning
Inspectorate’s response.

[THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 12.20 PM AT THIS POINT IN THE
PROCEEDINGS AND WAS RECONVENED AT 2 PM]

51

PLANNING APPLICATION B.19.0283

Single storey extension to side and rear, demolition of existing conservatory and
erection of detached garage
70, Linden Way, Boston, PE21 9DS
Applicant: Mr Coventry
The Principal Planning Officer presented the report. Members confirmed that they had
received the submission from the owner of 43 Allington Garden, received following the
publication of the agenda pack, which included a photograph demonstrating the impact
of the proposed garage.
Miss E Astbury addressed the Committee in objection to the application explaining that
she lived at 43 Allington Garden, which was located behind the application site with the
fence as the boundary, and that she was also speaking on behalf of her mother, the
owner, and 3 other neighbours, and made the following points, in summary. Their main
objection concerned the proposed detached garage on grounds relating to Policy 2 of

Page 19

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

the SELLP: noise, odour, disturbance and visual impact; the size and scale of the
proposal, which was excessive compared to the bungalow and other garages in the
area, giving rise to concerns about its intended purpose; and the impact of the dark,
slate roof, which they would like to see reduced in size and changed to a flat or lower
pitch. Also, it would not be possible to maintain the boundary fence because of the
proposed location of the garage and there would be an adverse effect on water run-off,
not considered in the Flood Risk Assessment.
Miss Astbury added that, as the applicant had a collection of classic motorbikes,
neighbours were concerned about potential noise and fumes and the possibility that the
garage might be used for commercial purposes or for living accommodation. Therefore,
they asked if the application for the garage could be rejected or its proposed size
reduced to that allowed under permitted development rights and for conditions to be
added to permission to prevent it being used for commercial use or living
accommodation.
Speaking as Ward Member, Councillor Yvonne Stevens addressed the Committee from
the public gallery and spoke of the impact on neighbours of noise from the number of
people living in the application property and the excessive number of cars parked
outside. Also, the applicant would need to have permission to access the garden of 43
Allington Garden for maintenance purposes, but if the proposed garage was moved 1m
away from the boundary fence this would not be necessary. The proposed garage was
also excessively high and its size did give rise to concerns that it might be rented out. In
conclusion, Councillor Stevens asked that for a condition to be added if permission was
granted for the garage to prevent its use as living accommodation and that it be moved
away from the boundary.
[Councillor Stevens left the room at this point and did not return until after the debate
and vote on this application had been completed.]
The Growth Manager provided advice to the Committee following the public speaking
and reminded them of relevant material planning considerations. This was
supplemented by comments of the Legal Advisor.
It was proposed by Councillor Brian Rush that planning permission be granted, as
recommended by the Planning Officers, but this was not seconded at this point.
It was then proposed by Councillor Jonathan Noble that planning permission be refused
on the grounds that the proposals were contrary to Policy 2 and 3 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan in terms of size and scale, visual intrusiveness, inappropriate
design in terms of materials, and the impact on residential amenity. This was seconded
by Councillor Peter Watson.
The Growth Manager provided further advice to Councillor Noble and the committee
more widely in relation to the concerns that were being raised and the potential need to
consider the component parts of the scheme – i.e. the extension and alteration of the
bungalow and the outbuilding.
A further debate took place and an amendment was then proposed by Councillor Tom
Ashton that planning permission be granted for the extension, as recommended by the

Page 20

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

Planning Officers, and that planning permission be refused for the garage on the
grounds of Policy 2 and 3 as stated.
Further advice was taken from the Growth Manager and the Legal Advisor on this point.
Following this, Councillor Peter Bedford seconded Councillor Rush’s proposal that
planning permission be granted as recommended by the Planning Officers, and
Councillors Jonathan Noble and Peter Watson withdrew their proposal to refuse
planning permission.
The Growth Manager sought clarification from Councillor Ashton regarding the reasons
for refusal relating to the garage/outbuilding element of the scheme. These related to
scale, massing, proximity to the common boundary and the impact on neighbouring
properties. The Growth Manager also requested Delegated Authority to amend the
conditions proposed for the element to be approved – this was agreed.
The Growth Manager accepted the reasons presented by Councillor Ashton and then
cited the following as the potential reason for refusal:
The proposed outbuilding, by virtue of its scale, massing and proximity to the
common boundary, would have an unacceptable impact on the amenities of
neighbouring properties (in particular 43 Allington Gardens) by virtue of its unneighbourly relationship and dominant form which results in an overbearing
impact. As such, the proposal is considered to be contrary to policies 2 & 3 of the
SELLP.
The amendment was the put to the vote.
Vote: 8 for, 2 against.
The amendment thereby became the substantive motion and was put to the vote.
Vote: 8 for, 2 against.
RESOLVED that:
A.

Planning permission be GRANTED for a single storey extension to side and
rear subject to the following conditions:

1

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:



Location Plan – Drawing No. 3316-008 – Uploaded 19/07/2019
Proposed Section & Floor Plan – Drawing No. 3316-005 – Uploaded
11/07/2019

Page 21

Planning Committee
15 October 2019





Proposed Elevations and Block Plan – Drawing No. 3316-004 – Uploaded
11/07/2019
Proposed 3D Views – Drawing No. 3316-003 – Uploaded 11/07/2019
Proposed Elevations, Sections and Block Plan – Drawing No. 3316-002 –
Uploaded 11/07/2019

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the
approved details, in the interest of residential amenity and to comply with Policies
2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).

B.

That planning permission be REFUSED for the erection of a detached
garage for the following reasons:
The proposed outbuilding, by virtue of its scale, massing and proximity to
the common boundary, would have an unacceptable impact on the
amenities of neighbouring properties (in particular 43 Allington Gardens) by
virtue of its un-neighbourly relationship and dominant form which results in
an overbearing impact. As such, the proposal is considered to be contrary
to policies 2 & 3 of the SELLP.
INFORMATIVES
In determining this application the Local Planning Authority has taken account of
the guidance in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in
order to seek to secure sustainable development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the Borough.
Where Surface Water is to be directed into a Mains Sewer System the relevant
bodies must be contacted to ensure the system has sufficient capacity to accept
the additional Surface Water. If there is any change to the surface water or
treated water disposal arrangements stated in the application, please contact the
Drainage Board.

52

PLANNING APPLICATION B.19.0215

Installation of a children’s play area
131 Sleaford Road, Boston, PE21 7PE
Applicant: Mr Simon Long
The Principal Planning Officer presented the report.
It was proposed by Councillor Michael Cooper and seconded by Councillor Alison Austin
that planning permission be granted as recommended by Planning Officers in their
report.
Vote: Unanimous

Page 22

Planning Committee
15 October 2019

RESOLVED that planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following
conditions:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans/documents:



Dimensions of Play Equipment – received 19th June 2019
Site Location Plan – received 9th July 2019

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the
approved details, in the interest of residential amenity and to comply with Policies
2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
In determining this application the Local Planning Authority has taken account of the
guidance in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to
seek to secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and
environmental conditions of the Borough.

The Meeting ended at 3.05 pm

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 1

PLANNING APPLICATION B/18/0399

Proposed residential development
consisting of 61 dwellings and construction
of new vehicular access and
associated works.

Land to the west of 90, 92 and 94 Fenside
Road Boston

Applicant: Seagate Homes Ltd

Page 25

Page 26

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Planning Committee - 10 December 2019
Reference No:

B/18/0399

Expiry Date:

03-Jan-2019

Extension of Time:

30-Sep-2019

Application Type:

Full Planning Permission

Proposal:

Proposed residential development consisting of 61 dwellings and
construction of new vehicular access and associated works

Site:

Land to the west of 90, 92 and 94 Fenside Road, Boston

Applicant:

Seagate Homes Ltd

Agent:

Mr Lee Riches, Studio 11 Architecture

Ward:

Fenside

Parish:Boston Town Area Committee

Case Officer:

John Taylor

Third Party Reps:

Link to Application :

Three received

B/19/0399

Recommendation: RESOLVE TO GRANT PERMISSION SUBJECT TO CONCLUSION
OF LEGAL AGREEMENT

Page 27

1.0

Reason for Report

1.1

The Growth Manager considers that this application should be determined by the
Planning Committee as the determination is to be made based upon Heads of
Terms which are not consistent with adopted policy owing to the schemes viability
position. The scheme and its viability resulting in a reduction in the amount of
developer contributions being proposed by the applicant.

2.0

Application Site and Proposal

2.1

The application site is located within the settlement boundary of Boston and consists
of a rectangular shaped parcel of land that occupies approximately 1.8 hectares.
The access for the proposed development would be taken from Fenside Road that
is located to the east of the site

2.2

The site is currently agricultural land that is clear of any buildings.

2.3

To the east and south are the rear garden areas of existing residential dwellings
and bordering the site to the north is Grange Wood. Open fields exist to the west of
the site.

2.4

The site is allocated in the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) under
ref: Fen001. This allocation identifies the site having an estimated capacity of 55
dwellings, and the following considerations:





Water resources are adequate to serve this development but an update to the
water supply network may be required
Boston Water Recycling Centre has capacity to accommodate sewerage flows
from this site, but enhancements to the capacity of the foul sewerage network
will be required.
The creation of a vehicular access may require the relocation of
telecommunication infrastructure
The site is in Flood Zone 3a and the SFRA identifies flood hazard in 2115 as
‘danger for most’ and flood depth in 2115 as ‘1.0m to 2.0m’ Developments will
be required to include appropriate mitigation.

2.5

This application seeks full planning permission for the erection of 61 dwellings
(revised down from 69 dwellings) with associated access, open space and
infrastructure.

2.6

The development would include:



14 x 3-beds
47 x 2-beds

2.7

The scheme also includes 8 dwellings which would be delivered as affordable
housing.

2.8

The application is supported by the plans and the following technical documents:






Design and access statement
Drainage strategy
Planning Statement
Flood risk assessment
Viability Appraisal

Page 28

3.0

Relevant History

3.1

No recent relevant history exists for this site.

4.0

Relevant Policy
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036)
The site is an allocated site within the plan under ref: Fen001.
The following policies are considered to be most relevant to the determination:
 Policy 1 – Spatial Strategy
 Policy 2 – Development Management
 Policy 3 – Design of New Development
 Policy 4 – Approach to Flood Risk
 Policy 5 – Meeting Physical Infrastructure and Service Needs
 Policy 6 – Developer Contributions
 Policy 10 – Meeting Assessed Housing Needs
 Policy 11 – Distribution of New Housing
 Policy 17 – Providing a Mix of Housing
 Policy 18 – Affordable Housing
 Policy 28 – The Natural Environment
 Policy 30 – Pollution
 Policy 31 – Climate Change and Renewable and Low Carbon Energy
 Policy 32 – Community, Health and Well-being
 Policy 33 – Delivering a more Sustainable Transport System
 Policy 36 – Vehicle and Cycle Parking


Appendix 5 – Infrastructure requirements, constraints and mitigation Housing Allocations in Boston – the site is ref: Fen001, which states:





Water resources are adequate to serve this development but an update to
the water supply network may be required
Boston Water Recycling Centre has capacity to accommodate sewerage
flows from this site, but enhancements to the capacity of the foul sewerage
network will be required.
The creation of a vehicular access may require the relocation of
telecommunication infrastructure
The site is in Flood Zone 3a and the SFRA identifies flood hazard in 2115
as ‘danger for most’ and flood depth in 2115 as ‘1.0m to 2.0m’
Developments will be required to include appropriate mitigation.





Appendix 6 - Parking standards
Appendix 8 - Developer contributions for education
Appendix 9 - Developer contributions for health care facilities



National Planning Policy Framework (2019)







Section 2 - Achieving Sustainable Development
Section 4 - Decision Making
Section 5 - Delivering a Sufficient Supply of Homes
Section 8 - Promoting Healthy and Safe Communities
Section 9 - Promoting sustainable transport

Page 29





Section 11 - Making Effective Use of Land
Section 12 - Achieving Well-designed Places
Section 14 - Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change, Flooding and Coastal
Change

5.0

Representations

5.1

As a result of the publicity three letters of objection/concerns were received from
the occupiers of the following properties:


Fenside Road – no’s 88, 92 and 94

5.2

A summary of their concerns are as follows:
 Impact on privacy and peace and quiet
 Noise as the access road runs the length of our property
 Visual impact of the development
 Loss of countryside and green space
 Land should be used to extend the conservation trust woodland instead of
housing
 Area should be used as a flood plain and not for housing as its in zone 3
 Increase risk of flooding to neighbouring houses
 Layout is medium to high density with little space for landscaping and trees
 The layout makes no attempt to limit the speed within the new development
 No pedestrian footway on western side of Fenside Road
 We applaud the small units for first time buyers but more option for larger
housing should be included so families that expand can stay in the area
 As ground levels are to be raised privacy will be compromised
 Open space within the development appears to use the IDB 9m byelaw area
with no provision of play equipment
 Parking areas should be a form of pervious paving as opposed to tarmac to
help the drainage and attenuation battle
 How are wheelie bins going to get to fronts of houses as there does not
appear sufficient room to put at front for collection
 Layout appears to maximise numbers with no consideration for future
occupiers or neighbouring residents
 Only 2 house designs used
 Increase in traffic
 Loss of daylight from the development
 Uncertainty over my boundary line

6.0

Consultations

6.1

County Highways Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority – No objections subject
to conditions. Further advice given to applicant.

6.2

Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust – Question if an ecological report has been submitted
but do provide guidance and advice on the scheme.

6.3

Housing Strategy (Affordable Housing) – Offer of 8 units (13% - 5 rented and 3
shared ownership) is acceptable even though this falls below the requirement of
20% as the scheme has been through the viability process and any increase in the
units is likely to make the scheme unviable. Subject to usual caveats regarding
provisions within a legal agreement.

Page 30

6.4

Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board – No objections but advice given on
watercourses that are not Board maintained and that licenses are likely to be
required for the discharge of surface water into Board maintained watercourses.

6.5

Environment Agency – No objections subject to conditions.

6.6

NHS England – Request a financial contribution of £45,540.00 towards improving
health provision to mitigate the impact of the development.

6.7

Lincolnshire County Council (Education) - Request a financial contribution of
£216,302.00 towards improving education provision to mitigate the impact of the
development.

6.8

Environmental Operations (Refuse) – Advice given on spur roads within the
development and the criteria that these must meet for refuse vehicles to enter
these areas. Failure to meet this criteria would mean that the bins would need to
be presented adjacent to the adopted highway on collection days

6.9

Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue – Object to the scheme unless a fire hydrant is
provided within the site at an acceptable location

7.0

Planning Issues and Discussions

7.1

The key planning issues in the determination of this application are:










Principle of development
The proposal’s impact on the character and appearance of the area
Highway safety, car parking and refuse collection
Flood risk and drainage
Impact on neighbour’s amenity
Developer contributions
Other matters
Planning Conditions
Planning Balance

Principle of development
7.2

Policy 1 of the SELLP, which identifies Boston as a sub-regional centre, would
generally support the redevelopment of the site for housing as it is located within
the settlement boundary of Boston and will help support Boston’s role as a subregional centre. The site is allocated for housing within the Plan under ref: Fen001.
The scheme would have the potential to provide a significant level of housing, within
a sustainable location and on an allocated site. This would contribute positively to
the housing needs (both market and affordable) within the Borough, and thus would
meet the aims of policies 10, 11, 17 & 18 of the SELLP and the aims of encouraging
housing growth within the NPPF.

7.3

It is therefore considered that, subject to all other matters being acceptable, the
principle of residential development on this site would be supported.

Page 31

The proposal’s impact on the character and appearance of the area
7.4

This proposal will see the erection of 61 dwellings in the form of semi-detached
dwellings and terraces of three dwellings. All dwellings will be accessed via a new
adoptable estate road taken from Fenside Road. A number of private driveways
would spur off from this new road. An area of public open space is to be provided
centrally within the scheme.

7.5

The density for the proposed development based on 61 dwellings equates to
approximately 34 dwellings per hectare, which in general density terms is
acceptable for this urban area. It is noted that the allocation (Fen001) identifies a
number of 55 dwellings being accommodated, however, this is only intended as a
useful starting point to influence development proposals. The associated policy
justification identifies that due regard must be given to policies 2 and 3 as well as
Appendix 5 to determine whether the specific development proposal is acceptable.

7.6

The layout identifies 61 dwellings set out in terrace blocks of three dwellings and
semi-detached properties. The dwellings are evenly dispersed over the plot with an
area of public open space located relatively centrally within the site. The units are
of traditional form, and would be constructed of brick under tiled roof, with detailing
including headers/cills and porch details.

7.7

The site would alter the appearance of the area by introducing development on
agricultural land. There would therefore be visual change to the area along with
spatial. However, it is considered that in view of the site’s allocation there is a
general acceptance that the site is suitable for development and that in spatial
terms this would be acceptable. Any change to the area is unlikely to cause
significant harm in terms of the character and appearance of the area, and any
harm that would result must be weighed in the planning balance against other
positive aspects of the scheme.

7.8

Based on the above assessment it is considered that the number of dwellings
proposed (61 units) appears acceptable for this allocated site (Ref: Fen001), and
given the limited views into the site from public vantage points the proposal is
unlikely to adversely impact the general character and appearance of the area. For
these reasons the proposal appears to accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the SELLP
and the intentions of Section 12 ‘Achieving Well-designed Places’ of the NPPF.
Highway safety and car parking and refuse collection

7.9

The main vehicular access into the site along would be built to adoptable standards
and, once completed, the road network will be adopted by the Local Highways
Authority. No objections have been raised by the Local Highway Authority subject
to a number of conditions. It is therefore concluded that this arrangement would be
acceptable in relation to matters such as visibility and general highway safety.

7.10

Policy 36 ‘Vehicle and Cycle Parking’ provides minimum parking standards for
various types of development. Annex 6 of the SELLP provides details on the level
of car parking and cycle parking expected within new residential developments. It
indicates that two parking spaces should be provided to serve properties of up to
three bedrooms and that a garage can count as one space if it has an internal
dimensions of 2.6m by 5.6m with an additional 1m at its end to park cycles.

Page 32

7.11

All dwellings appear to have adhered to the minimum parking levels set out in Annex
6 and the overall level of parking offered throughout the scheme and its layout is
considered, on balance, acceptable and appears to be in accordance with Policy 36
of the SELLP and associated Annex 6.

7.12

There are a number of small private roads within the development that would require
refuse bins to be presented adjacent to the adopted highway on collection days. As
these ‘collection areas’ have not been identified on the layout drawing a suitably
worded condition should be imposed requesting details of the location for the areas.
Flood Risk and drainage

7.13

The application site is located within flood zone 3 of the Environment Agency’s flood
zone maps and according the EA flood hazard maps (1 in 200 year) it is in a ‘danger
for most’ area where there is potential for flood level depths to exceed 1.0 metres.

7.14

The application is accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been
assessed by the EA and they do not raise objection to scheme subject to a
compliance condition. This has been included as condition 3 within the schedule of
conditions set out at the end of this report. The FRA also includes a Sequential and
Exceptions Test, which is considered to be appropriate and in view of the allocation
of the site within the SELLP, it is considered that there is no general objection to the
development of the site for housing from a flood risk perspective.

7.15

Based on the above assessment it is considered that, subject to conditions, the
proposal would accord with Policy 4 of the SELLP and the intentions of Section 14
‘Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change’ of the NPPF.
Impact on neighbour’s amenity

7.16

The nearest dwellings that may be impacted by the development are the four
properties to the east that front on to Fenside Road and the dwellings along the
southern boundary that form part of the Haven Meadows estate.

7.17

The four dwellings on to Fenside Road referred to above, are orientated east-west
and located on good-sized plots. They have rear gardens which would abut the site
boundary and would also be bounded by the access road which would run
alongside two of the properties. In terms of the separation distances between the
built form of the new development and the existing dwellings, a distance of over 21
metres will be maintained between their rear elevation and the nearest part of any
new dwellinghouse. It is therefore unlikely that any harmful dominance or visual
intrusion would occur as a result of the new development.

7.18

Where rear elevations of the new development face the rear elevation of the
dwellings on Haven meadows the separation distance would be approximately 18
metres. This distance is reduced down to approximately 8 metres where side
elevations would be presented towards properties within the Haven Meadows
estate. Again the relationship between the existing and new built form for this part
of the development would appear acceptable.

Page 33

7.19

It is therefore considered that the relationship between the existing dwellings along
Fenside Road and Haven Meadows and the new dwellings proposed as part of this
development would be acceptable as only minor harm to neighbour’s amenity would
occur in terms of dominance, visual intrusion and loss of privacy/overlooking. The
proposal would therefore accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the SELLP.
Developer contributions

7.20

Policy 6 ‘Developer Contributions’ of the SELLP sets out the obligations for major
developments that may be required to mitigate impacts of new development on local
services and infrastructure, and Policy 18 ‘Affordable Housing’ sets out the trigger
points and levels of affordable housing that would normally be expected for such
developments. Appendix 8 ‘Developer Contributions for Education Facilities’ and
appendix 9 ‘Developer Contributions for Health Care Facilities’ also have to be
considered.

7.21

This scheme would normally attract 20% of the units to be affordable homes (12
units) and financial requests have also been made in respect of Education and
Health:


A request has been made by Lincolnshire Education Services for a financial
contribution of £216,302 towards:
 Primary Education – Towards a new primary school in the west of
Boston
 Secondary Education – Towards expansion at Boston Haven High
 Sixth-Form Education – Towards a new sports hall at Boston
Grammar School



A request has also been made by NHS England for a financial contribution of
£45,540.00 towards improvements at The Sidings Medical Practice

7.22

Having considered these requests, the applicants have submitted a viability
statement that attempts to demonstrate that the proposed scheme would not be
viable with the planning obligations identified above. Following considerable
discussions, the applicants have advised that they are able to provide 8 dwellings
only in respect of the affordable housing requirement with nil contributions towards
the suggested financial contributions for health and education.

7.23

Government guidance (NPPG) provides comments on Viability issues which
highlights:
 It is up to the applicant to demonstrate whether particular circumstances justify
the need for a viability assessment at the application stage.
 The weight to be given to a viability assessment is a matter for the decision
maker, having regard to all the circumstances in the case, including whether the
plan and viability evidence underpinning the plan is up to date, and site
circumstances including any changes since the plan was brought into force, and
the transparency of assumptions behind evidence submitted as part of the
viability assessment.

Page 34

7.24

The applicant’s viability study includes a variety of inputs including the gross
development value (revenue), build costs, professional fees, marketing/legal costs,
finance, developer’s profit and site value, most of which appear to be reasonable in
the context of the scheme although further discussion has taken place in respect of
predicted house price sales.

7.25

The submitted viability assessment has been independently assessed and it was
concluded that the scheme would be unviable if the requested level of 20%
affordable housing contribution was met along with the provision of the financial
contributions suggested. It did however indicate that the scheme would be viable
with a reduced overall ask.

7.26

Given the findings of the Councils independent assessment of the viability, the
viability challenges to development on this site - which primarily relates to flood risk
and expected house prices being slightly lower for this area - are acknowledged and
understood. The conclusion of the appraisal is that the assumptions made within
the applicant’s viability assessment are generally reasonable and that the scheme
would be unviable if a provision of 20% affordable housing was provided as well as
the full contributions towards education and health provision. It is therefore accepted
that the scheme cannot meet the full requirements as identified earlier in this section
without rendering the development unviable. A balanced judgement therefore has
to be made that would not prejudice the delivery of this allocated site.

7.27

Following in depth discussion with the applicants regarding the independent
assessment they have now offered 8 of the 61 units (almost 13%) to be affordable
homes which is under the policy requirement of 20%, and with a nil contribution
towards the financial requests made by NHS England and Lincolnshire Education
Services. The level of affordable housing would be secured by way of a legal
agreement (unilateral undertaking).

7.28

The applicant’s offer of 8 affordable units with no further financial contributions is
considered to be reasonable and appropriate given the viability issues highlighted.
Whilst the scheme would fall short in respect of affordable housing provision and
the other financial contributions, and would therefore not be in full compliance with
policy 6 (and appendices 8 and 9), the offer of 8 affordable housing units would, on
balance, appear acceptable and in line with the conclusion provided by the
independent report received that considered the viability of the site. Given the
conclusions of the independent assessment, it is important to ensure that delivery
of this site, and much needed housing on this allocated site, is not prejudiced by the
viability issues. This is in line with the national Planning Practice Guidance (PPG).

7.29

The weight to be attributed to the viability position is a matter for the decision-taker.
Officers consider that a balanced judgement has to be made on the offer of 8
affordable units with nil financial contributions towards education and health care,
against the potential of the site being unviable for residential development. It is
Officer’s opinion that the offer of 8 units would be reasonable (without other financial
contributions) given that one of the key priorities for Boston is to increase the
amount of affordable housing and overall housing choice. Given the viability
challenge for this site it is considered that the offer of 8 units should be taken as a
positive benefit of the scheme. It is further noted that the Councils Housing section
are supportive of the revised offer of 8 affordable units, subject to the necessary
requirements of a legal agreement.

Page 35

7.30

Subject to a Legal Agreement which satisfactorily covers the above being concluded
the scheme, on balance, would accord with policies 6 and 18 of the SELLP.
Other matters

7.31

Policy 30 ‘Pollution’ and 31 ‘Climate change and renewable and low carbon energy’
of the SELLP set out a range of measure that developers would normally be
expected to comply with such as electric charging points, energy efficient boilers
and the need to comply with water efficiency standards. These measure aim to help
reduce the carbon footprint of developments making them more sustainable in line
with the guidance contained in the NPPF. This development would be a modern
development, designed to provide a high quality scheme meeting the expectations
of future residents and building regulations. With regard to the imposition of further
measures it is considered that this can be sufficiently dealt with by the way of
planning conditions requiring the submission of further details.
Planning Conditions

7.32

In addition to the standard conditions which limits the life span of the planning
permission and the site location plan, conditions are recommended which relate to
drainage and flood risk, highway works, refuse collection areas and a construction
management plan.

7.33

The construction management plan would also require the submission of details of
where construction materials will be stored, the siting of welfare facilities, working
hours etc. in order to protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings
during the construction of the development.

8.0

Planning Balance

8.1

Section 38(6) of the Act requires that proposals are determined in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. It is welldefined in case law that the development plan (in this case the SELLP) should be
taken as a whole and it is for the decision-maker to weigh up the extent to which
proposals are in accordance with/conflict with policies of the development plan and
their objectives, along with all relevant material considerations. The weight
attributed to each of these factors within this exercise is known as the ‘planning
balance’.

8.2

This site is allocated in the SELLP for housing (ref: Fen001) and within the
settlement boundary of Boston. Therefore, the principle of residential development
on this site is not disputed. It therefore accords with Policy 1. The scheme would
make a significant contribution to boosting the supply of housing within the
Borough, and would also contribute towards the delivery of Affordable Housing.
These are significant benefits arising from the scheme.

8.3

The layout of the development appears well thought out with the overall scheme
being unlikely to cause undue harm to the general character and appearance of the
area. The proposed dwellings appear to have suitably sized gardens and good
levels of parking and the scheme would provide a quality living environment for
future occupiers of the dwellings.

Page 36

The scheme would result in the loss of agricultural land, and visual change to the
area, however these effects are considered to be minor in nature given that the
land has been previously found as being acceptable for development by virtue of
its allocation, and that the scheme would appropriately assimilate into the existing
spatial character of the area. As such, the proposals therefore comply with policies
2, and 3 of the SELLP.
8.4

The environmental impacts of this development in relation to highway impact, flood
risk and general sustainability are considered to be acceptable and can be
appropriately mitigated through the imposition of recommended conditions.
Therefore the scheme would comply with policies 2, 3, 4, 30 and 31 of the SELLP.

8.5

The proposal would also include for provision of 8 affordable homes, although in
order to maintain the viability of the scheme the requested contributions towards
education and health provision cannot be complied with and the level of affordable
housing offered is below the policy requirement of 20%. The affordable housing
provision would be secured by a legal agreement (unilateral undertaking). In this
instance a balanced decision in reference to the obligations required to mitigate the
impact of the development is considered appropriate given the viability challenges.
With the provision of the affordable housing (albeit also at a reduced level), the
scheme would still be in broad accordance with policy 6, as well as securing much
needed affordable housing as identified by policy 18. When taken as a whole, it is
considered that the proposals would be in accordance with the aims of the
development plan, in particular those policies identified within this report.

8.6

Furthermore, whilst there are material considerations within this report which both
weigh in favour of and against the scheme, overall, none of these are considered
sufficient to outweigh the policy position established by the development plan as a
whole and in general terms, it is considered that the benefits of the scheme would
outweigh the negatives identified.

8.7

To conclude, when taken as a whole, it is Officers opinion that the scheme would
be acceptable in the planning balance, subject to the completion of the necessary
legal agreement and subject to the imposition of the conditions as recommended.

9.0

Summary and Conclusion

9.1

The proposal would result in the development of agricultural land for residential
purposes. The scheme would provide a substantial contribution to the housing
supply within the Borough and would provide 8 affordable homes for the Borough.
The site is suitable for residential development and the primary issues in the
determination of the application have been fully assessed as identified above and
found to be acceptable or would be acceptable subject to the imposition of the
conditions recommended and the conclusion of the associated S106 agreement. It
is therefore recommended that the application is supported.

10.0

Recommendation

10.1

It is recommended that Committee RESOLVE TO GRANT PLANNING
PERMISSION subject to the following conditions and the completion of the section
106 agreement relating to affordable housing as detailed in the report.

Page 37

CONDITIONS AND INFORMATIVES
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:




Ref: 410.SL.01 Rev E – ‘Site Layout and Location Plan’
Ref: 410.Skip.01 – ‘Skipton: Floor Plan and elevations’
Ref: 410.App.01 – ‘Appleby: Floor Plans and elevations’

And read in conjunction with the various recommendations of the supporting
documents which accompany the application unless varied by other conditions
attached to and forming part of this decision.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with
approved plans in accordance with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2011-2036)
3.

The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) dated September
2018 completed by S M Hemmings and the following mitigation measures
detailed within the FRA including:





Finished floor levels to be set no lower than 3.10m above Ordnance Datum
(AOD)
All dwellings to be at least two storey
Flood resilient construction to be included to a height of 300mm above the
predicted flood depths

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation of each
unit and subsequently remain in place.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future
occupants and to accord with Polices 2, 3, 4 and 31 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2011-2036) and the intentions of the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019).
4.

Prior to the construction of any building above damp proof course, a detailed scheme
for drainage and water infrastructure shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include:



A scheme for the provision of mains foul sewerage infrastructure on and off the
site
Details of connection point(s) and discharge rate(s)

Prior to the occupation of any dwelling within any phase of the development, the
drainage and water infrastructure measures relating to that phase and dwelling
must have been carried out in complete accordance with the approved scheme.

Page 38

Reason: To prevent environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding and
to accord with Polices 2, 3, 4 and 31 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan
(2011-2036) and the intentions of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019)
5.

The water consumption of each dwelling hereby permitted should not exceed the
requirement of 110 litres per person per day (as set out as the optional requirement
in Part G of the Building Regulations 2010 and the South East Lincolnshire Local
Plan, 2019). The person carrying out the work must inform the Building Control
Body that this duty applies. A notice confirming the requirement for the water
consumption has been met shall be submitted to the Building Control Body and
Local Planning Authority, no later than five days after the completion of each
individual dwelling.
Reason: To protect the quality and quantity of water resources available to the
district. This condition is imposed in accordance with Policy 31 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-0236).

6.

Prior to the construction of any building above damp proof course, final details of
measures that aim to reduce pollution and promote renewable and low carbon
energy (including measures such as facilities for EV car charging) and details
relating to the timing of their implementation, shall be submited to and approved in
writing with the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved measures.
Reason: To help reduce pollution and promote renewable and low carbon energy
in new development schemes and to accord with Policies 2, 3 , 30 and 31 of the
South east Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and to accord with the intentions
of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019).

7.

No development shall take place above damp proof course, until details of the
materials proposed to be used in the construction of the external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: No details of materials have been submitted, these details are required in
the interests of the amenity of the area and to ensure that the new buildings are in
keeping with the character of the area to accord with the objectives of Policies 2
and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and the intentions of
the National Planning Policy Framework (2019).

8.

No development shall take place above damp proof course, until details of the bin
collection areas for all private drives have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: No details of these areas have been submitted and refuse lorries will not
be able to access private drive areas and therefore bins need to presented at the
adopted highway. This condition accords with the objectives of Policies 2 and 3 of
the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and the intentions of the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019).

Page 39

9.

Prior to the construction of any building above damp proof course, full details of
both hard and soft landscaping works shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include
a) boundary treatment
b) hard surface materials
c) minor structures
d) planting schedules (species, sizes densities etc)
e) existing trees to be retained/removed
f) biodiversity mitigation and enhancement measures
The approved works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Policies 2 and
3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036.
10. All landscape works relating to each completed part of the development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details within 6 months of the
completion of that part of the development. Any trees, plants, grassed areas which
within a period of 5 years from the date of planting die, are removed or become
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the first available planting
season with others of similar size species or quality.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure an effective landscaping
scheme is delivered, including planting of trees, and to ensure that the approved
scheme is implemented satisfactorily, in accordance with Policies 2 and 3 of the
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
11. Prior to the commencment of any part of the development above slab level, details
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority for the provision
of one (1) fire hydrant or other acceptable alternative along with a timetable for
its installation relative to the phasing of the development. The fire hydrant (or
other acceptable alternative) shall be installed at the relevant point of development
in accordance with the agreed timetable.
Reason: To enable the protection and maintenance of the development and to
accord with Polices 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
12. Prior to the construction of any road or building, details of all roads (including
footways and junctions) shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority.
Before any dwelling is occupied, all of that part of the estate road (including
associated footways and junction with the main road) that serves that dwelling shall
be laid out and constructed in accordance with the agreed details.
Reason: In the interests of safety, to avoid the creation of pedestrian trip hazards
within the public highway from surfacing materials, manholes and gullies that may
otherwise remain for an extended period at dissimilar, interim construction levels.
This condition accords with Polices 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local
Plan (2011-2036).

Page 40

13. Prior to the construction of any building above damp proof course, a detailed
surface water drainage scheme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority
for agreement in writing.
The scheme shall:







Be based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the
hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development;
Provide details of how run-off will be safely conveyed and attenuated during
storms up to and including the 1 in 100 year critical storm event, with an
allowance for climate change, from all hard surfaced areas within the
development into the existing local drainage infrastructure and watercourse
system without exceeding the run-off rate for the undeveloped site;
Provide attenuation details and discharge rates which shall be restricted to a
level that shall be submitted to and agreed by the Local lanning Authority
Provide details of the timetable for any phasing of implementation for the
drainage scheme; and
Provide details of how the scheme shall be maintained and managed over the
lifetime of the development, including any arrangments for adoption by any
public body or statutory undertaker and any other arrangements required to
secure the operation of the drainage system throughout its lifetime.

No dwelling shall be occupied until the approved scheme has been completed or
provided on the site in accordance with the approved phasing, and all surface water
measures relating to that phase and dwelling have been completed. The approved
scheme shall be retained and maintained in full in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is adequately drained
without creating or increasing flood risk to land or property adjacent to, or
downstream of, the development permitted. This condition accords with Policies 2,
3 and 4 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and the intentions
of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019).
14. Prior to the commencement of the development above ground level, a Construction
Management Plan shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval
in writing. The Construction Management Plan will prescribe how the construction
of the site will be phased, where site accommodation and welfare facilities will be
placed, hours of working, where site vehicles and the vehicles of site personnel will
be parked and where materials will be delivered and stored within the site.
Construction of the permitted development shall be undertaken in accordance with
the approved Construction Management Plan.
Reason: In the interests of the safety and free passage of the public, in the
interests of residential amenity and to accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the South
East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036).
INFORMATIVES
1. The applicant’s attention is drawn to the informative provided by the Black Sluice
Internal Drainage Board attached to this planning permission.

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0068

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection
of 4 dwellings with new access and
associated site works
(revised plans, revised description)

118 Church Road Boston PE21 0LG

Applicant: Mrs B Orrey

Page 43

Page 44

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Planning Committee – 10th December 2019

Reference No:

B/19/0068

Expiry Date:

16-Apr-2019

Extension of Time:

14-Dec-2019

Application Type:

Full Planning Permission

Proposal:

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 4 dwellings with new
access and associated site works (revised plans, revised
description)

Site:

118, Church Road, Boston, PE21 0LG

Applicant:

Mrs B Orrey

Agent:

Mr Clive Wicks, Clive Wicks Associates

Ward:

Skirbeck

Parish:Boston Town Area Committee

Case Officer:

John Taylor

Third Party Reps:

Link to Application: B/19/0068
Recommendation: REFUSE

Page 45

22 received

Relevant Appendices:
Appendix 1 – 20th August 2019 Committee Report:
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s8335/Planning%20Application.pdf
Appendix 2 - 20th August 2019 Committee Minutes:
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/g1509/Printed%20minutes%2020th-Aug2019%2010.00%20Planning%20Committee.pdf?T=1
Appendix 3 – Comparison of schemes
1.0

Background:

1.1

Members will recall the discussion of this item at the 20th August Planning
Committee. The application being a revised scheme which sought to address a
previous refusal by the Planning Committee.

1.2

The Officer Report (see Appendix 1) set out a recommendation for refusal of the
application. Members will also recall that changes were proposed to the application
at a late stage (following formal submission and consultation on the application) those changes had not been formally accepted by Officers, with the
recommendation having been based upon the scheme as originally submitted.

1.3

Following public speaking, it was clear that there were mixed views of the scheme
within the Committee. Councillor Noble proposed refusal. Following further debate
regarding the submission of late changes to the application, the Growth Manager
confirmed that these changes would need to be the subject of the due process of
consultation before they could be considered. As a consequence Members
discussed deferring the application.

1.4

Councillor Peter Bedford proposed that the application be deferred in order that the
amended application could be considered at a future meeting and this was
seconded by Councillor Alison Austin. This was then carried on a vote (11 for, 2
against).

1.5

The resolution of the Planning Committee being: that the application be deferred
in order that the due process of consultation can be carried out on the amended
application and considered at a future meeting.

1.6

This addendum report covers the following:






1.7

Actions arising following the Committee resolution
Revisions made to the proposals
Additional consultations and the responses
Evaluation of the revised proposals
Recommendation for the application

This addendum report should be read in conjunction with the previous report to the
Planning Committee (appendix 1) as large parts of the original report remain
unchanged and remain valid (eg planning policy, planning history etc), as such, it
is only intended to address those matters which have been amended from the
original report.

Page 46

2.0

Actions arising following the Committee resolution:

2.1

Since the resolution identified above, Officers have been in lengthy discussions
with the applicant and their agent in order to attempt to address both the concerns
of Officers in respect of the scheme which have resulted in the previous
recommendation for refusal, and the comments of Members raised at the meeting.

2.2

Those meetings have been productive in many respects, and sufficient
opportunities have been afforded to the applicant consider their position in respect
of the scheme and to offer up amendments to the proposals. This has also included
consideration of alternative options, particularly in relation to the design of the units.

2.3

As a result, on 8th November 2019, revised plans were provided to the Council for
consideration as formal amendments to the scheme. These plans have been duly
accepted and have been re-consulted upon as set out later in this report.

3.0

Revisions to the proposals:

3.1

The scheme has undergone a number of changes which do make a material
difference to the scheme from its earlier iteration. Most notably the scheme has
now been reduced to 4 dwellings (removal of 1 unit), and the layout of the units
and the site in general has been amended. The design of the units (including the
form and material to be used on the roof, and elevation treatment) has also been
revised.

3.2

The Agent has provided a summary of the changes to the scheme, and some
associated rationale and this is set out below:
1. The total number of units is down from the original 6 units of the Refused
application B/18/0263 to 4 i.e. 2 pairs of dwellings.
2. We looked at different orientation of the dwellings, but believe that all other
orientation options reduced the clarity of the architecture of the current proposal,
and its ability to create a very positive impact on the Church Road, street scene.
3. We looked at a traditional pitched roof solution and this had two major defects;
a) It raised the ridge height of the roof; and
b) It reduced the amount of floor area generated at 2nd floor level.
4. We also, as advised, looked at gabled front elevations, but this;
a) Raised the height of the front elevation, bringing it out of character with the
2storey dwellings that dominate the street scene.
b) Created an excessive level of roof on each of the gables; and
c) It reduced the floor area at 2nd floor level to an unviable level.
5. The new proposal;
a) Provides two car parking spaces per dwelling plus a visitor space.
b) Each dwelling is provided with a charging unit for at least one vehicle.
c) By including a parking space between plots 2 and 3 we create an
increased distance between each of the blocks.
d) We have enlarged the front windows on the stairwells as requested and
moved the 2nd floor en-suite windows to the roof top. The study/bed 3
window of unit 4 is now on the gable end.

Page 47

e) The north east elevation has a double height bay to provide a positive
architectural feature to that gable facing traffic from the north. We have left
the windows at rear ground level since they do not impact on other
properties.
f) You will also note the angled profile of the roof compared with that of the
previously refused application. Like the scheme in Winchester it is now in
slate rather than metal.
3.3

The agent also comments that:
 “We have, I believe, taken on board all of the potentially adverse comments
raised during the rejection of the application for 6 dwellings and would hope now
that the Committee members will see that we have now proposed only 4 units
but still retain the positive architectural character which will enhance the Church
Road area. We have provided examples of a number of similar roof concepts
in Harrogate, Highgate, Winchester, Bath and Hammersmith (attached) which
incorporate a mixture of vertical and angled roof cladding. All are located in a
historic context where the Local Planning authorities have supported this
contemporary detail even though, in each case, they are different from the
remainder of the street scene.”
 “…the examples I have provided will show members that they are not taking a
risk with this application. It can enable my client to produce the sort of
architecture that she believes will enhance her town for many years to come,
and hopefully inspire others in the town to raise the design bar.”

3.4

A comparison of the schemes is provided in Appendix 3

4.0

Additional Consultation & Outcomes:

4.1

As the revised plans make significant material amendments to the scheme, it was
considered that a re-consultation exercise was required in this instance. This has
been done on a limited basis, to neighbouring properties (who were first notified of
the scheme) and those who responded to the original consultation. This allowed
an additional 14days for comments.

4.2

As a result of the above, a further 4 responses were received, the following is a
summary of those responses:












Still representative of over-development – flawed concept
Not suitable for the context of Church Road or Boston – more suited to a city
centre
Potential for target market ‘young professionals’ to sub-let or share which would
increase the impact of the development, particularly in terms of parking
provision.
2 dwellings, with a more traditional roof pitch would be more suitable
Insufficient parking provision – in particular visitor parking
Overlooking towards 120 Church Road.
Distraction of passing drivers – highway safety concerns
Will dominate the street-scene.
Will impact on amenities of neighbouring properties
Unsympathetic design
Does not address previous concerns

Page 48

4.3

It should be noted that as matters covered by statutory consultees remained largely
unchanged, no further consultation with them was undertaken. The original
responses as set out in the report at Appendix 1 remain valid.

4.4

Equally due regard should also continue to be given to the responses by Third
Parties on the application, that are summarised within Appendix 1.

5.0

Evaluation
Matters covered within the previous report (see Appendix 1):

5.1

Matters relating to the Principle of Development, and Flood Risk, were addressed
within the original report and were found to be acceptable. These matters remain
unchanged and therefore remain acceptable.
Design, Size and Scale and the resulting impact on the Character and
Appearance of the Area

5.2

As identified above, the proposals have undergone quite significant changes since
the previous report to the Planning Committee in August. Most notably the scheme
has been reduced by a further unit, taking the total number of units now proposed
down to 4 (noting the original submission was for 5 and the refused scheme was
for 6). As a result of this reduction, it has been possible to amend the layout of the
site and the arrangement of the dwellings, and the proposals are now for 2 x Semidetached pairs. The parking has been re-distributed throughout and additional
landscaping proposed to the front of the units.

5.3

The each pair would approximately 10m wide by 7.5m deep with an overall height
of 8.35m from existing ground level. It is proposed to raise the ground floor 500mm
above existing ground level with the use of flood resilient construction and 600mm
high flood barriers to accommodate flood risk.

5.4

The design ethos of the units remains largely as per the earlier iteration, however,
fenestration changes have been incorporated. The main materials would be redmulti stock brickwork, natural slate roof, grey UPVC windows, lead window
surrounds and cladding.

5.5

Polices 2 and 3 are the key policies that would be used when assessing the
appearance of the building, its size and scale and how the development will
assimilate with its surroundings. Residential amenity, as well as other matters, are
also assessed under these policies. These are supplemented by the principles of
good design embedded in Section 12 of the NPPF.

5.6

The previous report (paras 7.6-7.14 of Appendix 1) identified that Officers
considered that the revised submission remained unacceptable in design terms,
this related to the following aspects:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Size of the site and amount of development proposed – over-development
Modern design of the terrace – out of character
Car dominated environment
In combination, the development would appear alien and visually intrusive.

Page 49

5.7

The applicant and their agent have sought to address these points through the
revised plans, and respond to the concerns of Members raised during the debate
at the August Planning Committee.

5.8

Officers have re-considered the above points in light of the revisions to the scheme
and would comment on each aspect as follows:
1.

Size of the site and amount of development proposed – over-development

5.9

It is considered that the reduction in number of units is an improvement to the
scheme, this has a positive effect in so far as it creates more space within the
development and allows the 4 units now proposed to be distributed in a different
manner.

5.10

The spatial arrangement of the dwellings (as 2 x Semi-detached pairs) is
considered to be an improvement and is more in-keeping with existing semidetached forms which are found within the local area. This weighs in favour of the
scheme.

5.11

The layout of the site has tried to balance creating a frontage onto Church Road,
whilst ensuring appropriate relationships with the surrounding development and
providing useable amenity spaces for future occupants. This does result in the
development appearing a little tight in places, in particular the close proximity to
Church Road of the northern-most pair. With the exception of this relatively minor
criticism, the general layout of the site is considered to be acceptable and an
improvement.

5.12

Whilst the scheme is not ideal in respect of the amount of development proposed,
and there are some minor criticisms in respect of the layout, it is no longer
considered that the scheme could be considered as being symptomatic of overdevelopment, and thus it is considered that a refusal citing this reason would be
unlikely to be sustainable at Appeal.

5.13

However, concerns remain that the amount of development (ie the size of each
unit) is directly impacting upon the design solution in a negative way, however, this
is addressed in more detail under point 2 below.
2.

Modern design of the terrace – out of character

5.14

The revised proposals still seek a modern/contemporary approach to development
on this site. This remains a concern.

5.15

It is considered that a large part of the design is influenced by the desire to achieve
a third-floor of accommodation (contained within the roofspace). The applicants
position is that in order to deliver a viable, high quality, market-led scheme based
upon a desire for contemporary designs and modern living, this is the minimum
level of accommodation that would be necessary and expected. As a consequence,
the agent has considered alternatives (including a gabled arrangement) and
considers that this is the most appropriate design response and is one which has
been utilised within other contexts in a successful way – examples such as
Winchester and Harrogate are cited.

Page 50

5.16

Officers have had sight of sketches of the alternative roof designs, and agree with
the agent that alternative approaches also have their own negatives (such as
increased overall height). This therefore confirms that the amount of
accommodation is restrictive to the design solution and what can be achieved in
relation to respecting the character and appearance of the area. This weighs
against the proposal.

5.17

Notwithstanding that improvements have been made to the fenestration of the
development, including when viewed from the north, there remain concerns that
the development is unacceptable in design terms. Officers remain of the opinion
that this development, by virtue of its modern design approach would still appear
out of character, incongruous and alien in the established context of Church Road.
The overall design of the units and in particular the roof-form would be out of
character with the existing developments in the area, and would lead to the
development failing to integrate into the street scene and appearing as a stand-out
feature. Given the size of the development and the visual prominence in the street,
this would in officers opinion have an adverse impact. This weighs against the
proposal.

5.18

As a stand-alone development, it is accepted that on the whole it would be a quality
solution and would deliver a style of development which seeks to raise the standard
of design generally. It is clearly a development of the current time, with the use of
fenestration details such as window proportions, surrounds and cladding to
reinforce this. However, Officers remain of the view this is an inappropriate design
response for this location. Officers accept that there are examples where this
approach to development can be acceptable, as it would integrate into or raise the
standards of design within an area, but each case must be considered on its own
merits.

5.19

Design is somewhat subjective in nature, and there will clearly be differing opinions
on the proposed scheme. Officers believe that on balance the design of the scheme
remains a concern, and that this is influenced (to an unacceptable degree) by the
amount of accommodation that is required within each unit. To that end, it is
considered that the development is unacceptable and that a reason for refusal
could be based upon these elements, with relevance to the requirements of policies
2 and 3 of the SELLP.
3.

5.20

Car dominated environment

It is considered that the layout and distribution of the parking is much improved
from previous iterations. It is considered that the parking is no longer a dominant
element of the overall scheme and whilst there would be some parking in front of
the units, on the whole this would not be detrimental to the scheme or the wider
area. As such, in design terms, this aspect of the previous recommendation has
been addressed in a positive way and overcome. This clearly weighs in favour of
the proposal.
4.

In combination, the development would appear alien and visually intrusive

Page 51

5.21

Point 4 of the previous recommendation to refuse, sought to consider the overall
effect of the development on the character and appearance of the area. In light of
the aforementioned comments under the various sub-points, it is considered that
the scheme would remain as an alien and visually intrusive development within the
established context and character of the area. This being principally due to the
modern design of the proposal. This element cannot be considered as having been
satisfactorily addressed, and thus, this aspect of the previous recommendation has
not been overcome.

5.22

In conclusion of this section of the report, when considering matters relating to
design, size and scale, and the resulting impact on the character and appearance
of the area, it is Officers view that the proposals remain to be unacceptable. Whilst
a number of the short-comings of previous iterations have been addressed, and
the scheme has also sought to propose further enhancements to the design and
fenestration of the units, it is considered that the scheme remains unacceptable as
a whole. It is Officers view that the development, by virtue of the amount of
accommodation proposed and the modern design approach of the proposed
buildings, would result in a form of development which would appear alien and
intrusive within the context and character of Church Road. The proposals would
have an adverse impact on the character of the area, and thus, would be contrary
to policies 2 and 3 of the SELLP.
Impact on residential amenity

5.23

The previous iteration of the proposal raised concerns in respect of the potential
impact on neighboring amenities. This was due to concerns regarding the limited
space to the rear of the proposed properties and potential overlooking (and
perception of being overlooked) into the garden areas for the existing dwellings –
particularly given the scale of the development and close proximities.

5.24

Whilst the scheme has not been reduced in overall height and scale, it is
considered that improvements have been made in terms of the potential to
reduce overlooking:
 The number of rear windows have been reduced – including the removal of
windows previously shown within the roofspace
 The remaining windows in the rear elevation would serve a bedroom and a
bathroom within each unit (the bathroom window being obscured).
 The removal of 1 unit has enabled the layout to be loosened up, to improve
the provision of amenity space. The closest unit would be 4.41m to the
common rear boundary.

5.25

When taking account of the surrounding context, including the extent of existing,
mutual overlooking between properties – which is not uncommon in an urban
context – Officers are of the view that the scheme is largely acceptable in amenity
terms. It is not considered that any minor harm that would result would be sufficient
to make a refusal on amenity grounds defendable at appeal.

5.26

Therefore this aspect of the scheme has been satisfactorily addressed and the
scheme would comply with policies 2 and 3 in respect of this issue.

Page 52

Highway safety and car parking
5.27

The revised scheme maintains two dedicated spaces per unit (including
opportunities for EV charging) and one visitor car parking space. This amount
would accord with the minimum parking standards set out in Annex 6 of the SELLP.
The layout and distribution of this parking has changed significantly from previous
iterations. This is considered to be a positive improvement to the scheme and
reduces the visual dominance of parking within the layout and now better
represents an organised and logical arrangement throughout the site. This would
not have been possible were it not for the overall reduction in units on the site. As
such, it is considered that this is improved in design terms.

5.28

Given that the Highways Authority did not object to the scheme, it is considered to
be acceptable in highway safety terms. Thus, this element of the previous
recommendation for refusal is considered to have been addressed.

Has the revised scheme sufficiently addressed the previous reason for
refusal?
5.29

The previous 2018 scheme (B/18/0263) for 6 dwellings was refused by the
Planning Committee. As per the previous report (appendix 1) it is a material
consideration that is required to be taken into account when assessing this
proposal. Although the policy context has changed (with the adoption of the
SELLP) it is considered that significant weight should be afforded to this decision
owing as it is a relatively recent decision and there have been no significant
changes to the site. It is this reason for refusal which the current application seeks
to overcome and demonstrate that the re-development of the site would be
acceptable.

5.30

As per the recommendation in appendix 1, Officers were clear in that the current
application as originally submitted did not go sufficiently far so as to fully address
all of the previous concerns. Officers continuing to be of the view that the scheme
was unacceptable due to the amount of development, its design and layout which
would have had unacceptable impacts on the amenities of neighbouring properties
and the character of the area. As set out earlier in this report, there were clearly
differing views amongst the Planning Committee on this recommendation.

5.31

However, further, significant changes have been made since the deferral by the
Committee, and in light of the assessment within the previous sections of this
evaluation, it is prudent to reconsider whether this revised scheme has gone
sufficiently far to address the reason for refusal and demonstrate that the scheme
is acceptable.

5.32

On the positive, the parking arrangement would no longer result in a car dominated
environment, the scheme has addressed the concerns in respect of neighbouring
amenity, and overall the criticism in relation to overdevelopment can no longer be
levelled against the scheme. There have also been positive improvements to the
fenestration of the units and the general design of the scheme.

Page 53

5.33

On the negative, there remain concerns regarding the modern design that has
been adopted and the consequential adverse impact that the development would
have upon the character and appearance of the area. This approach is unduly
influenced (in Officers opinion) by the amount of accommodation that is desired
within each unit. In consequence, it is considered that the resultant development
would remain as an alien and intrusive addition to the area, and as such, the
proposals would continue to be contrary to the objectives of policies 2 & 3 of the
SELLP.

5.34

Overall therefore it is Officers view that the changes that have been made are
commendable, and have moved the scheme forward substantially, however, these
are not sufficient to fully address all of the previous shortcomings identified by the
previous refusal, nor do they result in a scheme which of itself is compliant with
planning policy.

Planning Balance
5.35

Section 38 (6) of the Act, requires proposals to be determined in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. This is
known as the planning balance. In this particular case, there are a number of finely
balanced issues as set out within the above section.

5.36

Whilst Officers appreciate the considerable efforts of the applicant and their agent
to address the previous reason for refusal, unfortunately, in Officers opinion the
scheme remains unacceptable. Whilst design can be a subjective issue, Officers
remain of the opinion that the scheme would not be acceptable in design terms
and that the proposals would have an unacceptable impact upon the character and
appearance of the area. Thus, the scheme would be contrary to the objectives of
policies 2 & 3 of the SELLP. It is considered that a refusal based on design grounds
would, in this instance, be a defendable position at Appeal.

5.37

Within the planning balance, due regard must be given to the scheme as a whole,
including the wider positive effects of the development. Positive weight in favour of
the scheme could be levied against the net increase in 3 additional housing units,
which would be brought forward on a previously-developed site in a sustainable
location. It is also accepted that the site currently does not contribute positively to
the street scene, and is in need of re-development. Further, the applicant has made
clear their belief that this scheme is: A viable, deliverable scheme, which would
deliver modern housing units which would be responsive to market-demand in this
area, and which would also incorporate sustainable build techniques such as
energy efficiency and EV charging – all of which could weigh in favour of the
scheme. There would therefore be elements of the scheme which are compliant
with other policy objectives of the plan and the NPPF – such as those which relate
to the delivery of housing in sustainable locations and support for re-development
of previously-developed land.

Page 54

5.38

However, the Council can currently demonstrate a 5YHLS, and thus the
presumption in favour of sustainable development as required under para 11(d) of
the NPPF does not apply in this instance. The proposals must therefore be judged
primarily against the requirements of the development plan, and it is the advice of
Officers that the scheme would by contrary to policies 2 & 3 of the SELLP.

5.39

The relevant policies issues in this situation are finely balanced, with policies which
are both for and against the proposal. It is considered that on balance, the scheme
would remain contrary to the objectives of policies 2 & 3 in relation to design and
the impact upon the character and appearance of the area. As such, it is
considered that, on balance, the scheme should be recommended for refusal.

6.0

Recommendation

6.1

It is recommended that Committee REFUSE the application for the following
reason:

1.

Having regard to the amount of accommodation proposed within each unit and the
resultant modern design, the proposed development would be out of keeping with
the designs and forms of other properties in the vicinity of the site. The proposed
development would appear alien, visually intrusive, and out of character, and
therefore contravenes Polices 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan
(2011-2036) and would not accord with the intentions of Section 12 ‘Achieving
Well-designed Places’ of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

Refused Plans
 Ref: 17-2384-P-03 Rev A ‘Location Plan’
 Ref: 17-2384-P-01 Rev K ‘Proposed Plan and Elevations’

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority has taken account of the
guidance in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to
seek to secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and
environmental conditions of the Borough.

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Planning Committee - 20 August 2019
Reference No:

B/19/0068

Expiry Date:
Extension of Time:

16-Apr-2019

Application Type:

Full Planning Permission

Proposal:

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of terrace block of 5 three
storey dwellings with new access and associated site works

Site:

118, Church Road, Boston, PE21 0LG

Applicant:
Agent:

Mrs B Orrey
Mr Clive Wicks, Clive Wicks Associates

Ward:

Skirbeck

Parish:Boston Town Area Committee

Case Officer:

John Taylor

Third Party Reps:

Link to Application: B/19/0068
Recommendation: REFUSE

Page 57

13 received

1.0

Reason for Report

1.1

This application has been referred to the Planning Committee at the request of
Councillor Alistair Arundell, the reason for the call-in being that the previous scheme
for this site was presented before the Committee.

2.0

Application Site and Proposal

2.1

The site is located within the built up area of Boston and is a triangular parcel of
land forming the southern part of the junction of Windsor Crescent and Church
Road. It consists of a detached house, i.e. no 118 Church Road and detached
garage within a large residential curtilage. The site lies within a residential area and
there are residential properties to either side, to the rear and opposite the site. Lea
Park residential mobile home site (currently 33 homes) is located on the opposite
side of Church Road.

2.2

The application site area is 0.08 hectares (800 sqm) with a road frontage of 46
metres and a depth ranging from 28.5 metres to 5 metres nearer the junction with
Windsor Crescent.

2.3

This proposal seeks the demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a terrace
block of 5 three-storey dwellings with new access and associated site works.

2.4

This proposal differs from the previous refusal in such that it has removed one of
the dwellings within the terrace, revised the parking area, improved the landscaping
and made minor changes to the fenestration and design.

3.0

Relevant History

3.1

B/18/0263 – Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a terrace block 6no.
three-storey dwellings – Refused by committee on 19/10/2018.
The reason for refusal was as follows:
‘The proposed development, having regard to the size of the application site
coupled with the modern design of the proposed terrace will appear out of character
with the overall pattern of development in the area and will be out of keeping with
the designs and forms of other properties in the vicinity of the site. The proposed
development will result in an overdevelopment of the site and appear alien and
visually intrusive, will lead to a car-dominated environment and will cause
substantial harm to the amenity of neighbouring residents. The development will
therefore contravene the objectives of Local Plan Policies G1, H2 and H3’

3.2

B/06/0172 – 118 Church Road - Planning permission for the change of use from
residential dwelling to house of multiple occupancy (5 units) plus single storey
extension to south elevation to form bathroom, two storey side extension to the
north elevation for multiple occupancy use (4 units) plus associated parking and
new access. Originally, 6 no. additional units were proposed in the extension but
following discussions with the Local Planning Authority (LPA), this was reduced to
4 no. units. Therefore, this development provided 9 no. separate dwelling units
served by 8 no. car parking spaces and was approved by Planning Committee on
30th May 2006.

Page 58

3.3

B/05/0828 – 118 Church Road – Retrospective application for the change of use
from residential to house of multiple occupation (5 units) plus single storey side
extension to form bathroom and two storey side extension to form four selfcontained flats - withdrawn following discussions with the LPA.

3.4

B/05/0392 – 118 Church Road – Retrospective application for change of use of
workshop to offices (recruitment agency) – approved subject to conditions
restricting operating hours and making the permission applicable to a named
company (recruitment agency) only. The garage/workshop had to revert to its
original domestic use in association with host property once the commercial use
ceased.

3.5

B/05/0393 – 118 Church Road – Advertisement Consent granted for a flat panel
sign advertising the business (recruitment agency). An attached condition required
the sign to be removed once the use ceased.

3.6

B05/0512/97 – Plot of land between 116 & 118 Church Road - Outline application
for the construction of one dwelling – withdrawn following discussions with LPA.

3.7

B05/0128/98 – Plot of land between 116 & 118 Church Road - Outline application
for the construction of one dwelling – approved.

3.8

B05/0117/9 – 118 Church Road - Full application for the construction of a
replacement garage – approved.

3.9

B/02/0117 - Plot of land between 116 & 118 Church Road - Outline application for
the construction of one dwelling and new vehicular access – approved subject to a
condition which limited the house to two storeys to retain the character of the
locality.

3.10

B/02/0369 – Plot of land between 116 & 118 Church Road - Full application for the
construction of one dwelling - approved. As this was a Full application for a two
storey, house of standard design, no restrictive conditions were necessary.

4.0

Relevant Policy
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) (SELLP)













Policy 1 – Spatial Strategy
Policy 2 – Development Management
Policy 3 – Design of New Development
Policy 4 – Approach to Flood Risk
Policy 5 – Meeting Physical Infrastructure and Service Needs
Policy 10 – Meeting Assessed Housing Needs
Policy 11 – Distribution of New Housing
Policy 17 – Providing a Mix of Housing
Policy 30 – Pollution
Policy 31 – Climate Change and Renewable and Low Carbon Energy
Policy 32 – Community, Health and Well-being
Policy 36 – Vehicle and Cycle Parking

Page 59

National Planning Policy Framework (2019) (NPPF)








Section 2 – Achieving Sustainable Development
Section 4 – Decision Making
Section 5 – Delivering a Sufficient Supply of Homes
Section 8 – Promoting Healthy and Safe Communities
Section 11 – Making Effective Use of Land
Section 12 – Achieving Well-designed Places
Section 14 – Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change, Flooding and Coastal
Change.

5.0

Representations

5.1

As a result of the publicity for this application thirteen objections have been received
from the following addresses:








5.2

Windsor Crescent – No’s 2, 4, 6, 8 and 10
Church Road – No’s 116A and 120
‘The Garden House’, Main Street, Willoughby Waterleys, Leicester
3 Tippett close Milton Keynes
‘Southwold’, 10 Kingswood Road, Copthorne, Shrewsbury
85 Harrington Street Bourne
6 Frewins, Budleigh Salterton, Devon.

The concerns are summarised as follows:






















Overall height of houses
Amount of development
Loss of light
Loss of privacy when in my house and my garden
If size and design of development is suitable we would support it but proposal
fails in these respects
Over-intensification of site
Design and materials are unsuitable
Unsafe exit for tandem parking layout
Proposal does not respect the form and character of area
Incongruous appearance
Commercial appearance rather than residential
Increase in noise and disturbance
Revised scheme (removing one unit) does not overcome the reason for refusal
Physical dominance of proposal
Insufficient bin storage
Insufficient amenity space for each dwelling
Building footprint way out of proportion with other developments
Church Road is not within the town centre as stated in the submitted information
Developers have misrepresented and misunderstood the character of the area
Increase in traffic
Elevated building will be visually intrusive.

Page 60

6.0

Consultations

6.1

County Highways Authority (Also acting as Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA)) –
No objections subject to advisories
Witham Fourth Internal Drainage Board – If there is any change in the method of
surface water then contact should be made with the Board for advice
Environment Agency – Advise using appropriate mitigation for the predicted flood
levels for the site
National Grid Plant Protection Team – Confirm that they have apparatus within the
site and prior to any development commencement (if the application is approved)
applicants need to contact the Plant Protection Team for advice.

6.2
6.3
6.4

7.0

Planning Issues and Discussions

7.1

The key considerations in regards to this application are:








Planning history
The principle of development
Design, size and scale and the resulting impact on the character and
appearance of the area
Impact on residential amenity
Flood risk
Highway safety and car parking
Conclusion.

Planning History
7.2

A previous application (B/18/0263) for 6 dwellings was refused by members of the
committee last year. As stated in para’ 3.1 of this report the reason for refusal stated:
‘The proposed development, having regard to the size of the application site coupled
with the modern design of the proposed terrace will appear out of character with the
overall pattern of development in the area and will be out of keeping with the designs
and forms of other properties in the vicinity of the site. The proposed development
will result in an overdevelopment of the site and appear alien and visually intrusive,
will lead to a car-dominated environment and will cause substantial harm to the
amenity of neighbouring residents. The development will therefore contravene the
objectives of Local Plan Policies G1, H2 and H3’

7.3

The above decision is now a material consideration that is required to be taken into
account when assessing this proposal. Although the policy context has changed
(with the adoption of the SELLP) it is considered that significant weight should be
afforded to this decision owing as it is a relatively recent decision and there have
been no significant changes to the site. The scheme has however changed in some
respects, as discussed in further detail in the following sections of this report, but
there are similarities between the schemes.

Page 61

Principle of Development
7.4

Policy 1 of the SELLP, generally supports the redevelopment of the site for housing
as it is located within the settlement boundary of Boston and will help support
Boston’s role as a sub-regional centre.

7.5

However, whilst the principle of residential development may be acceptable for this
site, the proposal has to be acceptable in all other respects and should accord with
other relevant policies in the SELLP.
Design, Size and Scale and the resulting impact on the Character and
Appearance of the Area

7.6

The proposed terrace would be approximately 25m wide by 7.5m deep with an
overall height of 8.5m from existing ground level. It is proposed to raise the ground
floor 500mm above existing ground level with the use of flood resilient construction
and 600mm high flood barriers to accommodate flood risk.

7.7

As identified, a previous application for a very similar scheme was rejected by the
planning committee last year. This scheme has seen revisions to the previously
refused scheme in the form of removing one of the units within the terrace block (six
to five) and providing a revised car parking layout that allows 2 dedicated spaces
per residential unit. Minor amendments to the fenestration have also been made but
the design, size and scale are largely the same as the scheme that was previously
refused at planning committee. It is acknowledged that the removal of one unit has
reduced the width of the terrace block from 30 metres to 25 metres.

7.8

As stated earlier in para’ 3.1 of this report the reason for refusal states:
‘The proposed development, having regard to the size of the application site
coupled with the modern design of the proposed terrace will appear out of character
with the overall pattern of development in the area and will be out of keeping with
the designs and forms of other properties in the vicinity of the site. The proposed
development will result in an overdevelopment of the site and appear alien and
visually intrusive, will lead to a car dominated environment and will cause
substantial harm to the amenity of neighbouring residents. The development will
therefore contravene the objectives of Local Plan Policies G1, H2 and H3’

7.9

The Policies referred to above from the Boston Borough Local Plan (1999) are no
longer relevant as that plan has been replaced with the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2011-2036).

7.10

Polices 2 and 3 are the key policies that would be used when assessing the
appearance of the building, its size and scale and how the development will
assimilate with its surroundings. Residential amenity, as well as other matters, are
also assessed under these policies. These are supplemented by the principles of
good design embedded in Section 12 of the NPPF.

Page 62

7.11

The previous scheme was refused by members of the committee due to serious
concerns being raised on a number of issues. Notwithstanding that the width of the
terrace has been reduced by 5 metres it is considered that the size and scale of the
building would still appear to overdevelop the site and its modern design would not
be in keeping with the form, character and overall pattern of development in the
area. The proposal would thus appear incongruous and visually intrusive within its
setting and the streetscene is likely to be harmed as a result of this development.

7.12

It is noted that the applicant’s agent has sought to justify the development based on
similar examples in other contexts. However, this justification is afforded minimal
weight as each site and context is different and proposals should be influenced by
and respectful of their context in order to integrate into their surroundings effectively.
This development would fail to achieve this. Furthermore, whilst the agent has
proposed further changes to the scheme (at a late stage and which have not been
consulted upon), these minor changes do not in the officer’s opinion address the
cumulative failings in the scheme.

7.13

It is therefore considered that the previous reason for application (B/18/0263) has
not been addressed and the application should be refused on similar grounds.

7.14

Although each application must be appraised on its own merit, this previous refusal
must be afforded significant weight in the planning balance. Notwithstanding, it is
concluded that without the refusal, similar concerns can be levied against the
current scheme in respect of matters relating to poor design, impact on the area etc.
In respect of those design concerns, the scheme would fail to accord with policies
2 and 3 of the SELLP and the objectives of securing high quality, sustainable design
advocated by the NPPF.
Impact on residential amenity

7.15

The layout of the proposal indicates that the rear garden areas for the five dwellings
will range from 6m deep to 4m deep. Habitable room windows in the rear elevation
are proposed on the first floor with en-suite bathroom windows only on the second
floor. The rear elevation of the proposal will have a separation distance of
approximately 20 metres between the rear elevations of the dwellings to the west
that front onto Windsor Crescent.

7.16

Although the separation distance between the built form maybe acceptable the
shallow garden depths for the new dwellings, some of which are 4 metres, would
lead to an element of overlooking into the garden areas for the existing dwellings.
This proposal is a three-storey development with an elevated finished floor level
(FFL) to account for flood risk. The size of the new building coupled with the design,
which identifies a flat roof with eaves forming the highest part of the roof, gives a
greater perception of being severely overlooked from this dominant structure and
private use of the neighbour’s garden areas will be compromised through
overlooking.

7.17

This amended scheme therefore fails to fully address the harm caused to
neighbouring amenity and it is considered that this concern is a continued failing of
the scheme.

Page 63

Flood Risk
7.18

The proposal states that FFL’s are to be raised 500mm above existing ground levels
to account for the risk of flooding. The Environment Agency advise that the Local
Planning Authority use their standing advice only and do not raise any objection to
the scheme. Subject to a condition setting out the FFLs and mitigation measures
proposed with the submitted Flood Risk Assessment no further concerns are raised
in respect of flood risk.

Highway safety and car parking
7.19

The proposal includes two dedicated spaces per unit and one visitor car parking
space. This is a small increase in the level of parking to that provided within the
previously refused scheme and the level of parking would accord with the minimum
parking standards set out in Annex 6 of the SELLP. However, the parking has been
somewhat ‘squeezed’ into the site with some of the spaces having little relationship
to the particular unit that they will serve. For example, unit 1 has one space
positioned at the southern end of the site and one space at the northern end of the
site (making 2 spaces). This gives the impression that the parking is a somewhat
sporadic afterthought rather than an organised parking arrangement for a new
development and, on balance, this is to the detriment of the scheme, and is a further
indication of poor design and the overdevelopment of the site.

7.20

Notwithstanding that the Highways Authority do not object to the scheme, in design
terms the proposal would still lead to a car-dominated environment. The previous
reason for refusal included this within the reason and it is considered that this
revised scheme has not fully addressed this issue and it should remain as part of
the reason for refusal for this application.

8.0

Summary and Conclusion

8.1

Section 38 (6) requires proposals to be determined in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The previous
(2018) refusal is a significant material consideration in this instance.

8.2

Whilst the principle remains acceptable against the SELLP, this revised proposal
does not appear to have fully addressed the reason for refusal set out in the
previous application (B/18/0263) and therefore it is considered that this proposal
should be refused on similar grounds.

8.3

Owing to the design and amenity concerns identified, the proposal would fail to
accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the SELLP and Section 12 of the NPPF.

Page 64

9.0

Recommendation

9.1

It is recommended that Committee REFUSE the application for the following
reason:
1. ‘The proposed development, having regard to the size of the application site
coupled with the modern design of the proposed terrace will appear out of
character with the overall pattern of development in the area and will be out of
keeping with the designs and forms of other properties in the vicinity of the site.
The proposed development will result in an overdevelopment of the site and
appear alien and visually intrusive, will lead to a car dominated environment and
will cause substantial harm to the amenity of neighbouring residents. The
development will therefore contravene Polices 2 and 3 of the South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and would not accord with the intentions of
Section 12 ‘Achieving Well-designed Places’ of the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019)
Refused Plans:




Ref: 17-2384-P-03 Rev A ‘Location Plan’
Ref: 17-2384-P-01 Rev G ‘Proposed Plan and Elevations’
Ref: 17-2384-P-04 ‘Landscape Specification’

Mike Gildersleeves
Growth Manager

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

20 AUGUST 2019

PLANNING COMMITTEE
Present:
Chairman:
Vice-Chairman:

Councillor Tom Ashton
Councillor Frank Pickett

Councillors:

Alison Austin, Peter Bedford, Michael Cooper, Paul Goodale,
Neill Hastie, Jonathan Noble, Brian Rush, Chelcei Sharman,
Paul Skinner, Yvonne Stevens and Peter Watson

Officers:

Growth Manager, Senior Planning Officer, Legal Advisor,
Legal Services Lincolnshire and Senior Democratic Services
Officer

25

MINUTES

The minutes of the Committee’s last meeting, held on 23 rd July 2019, were agreed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman, with the amendment to show that Councillor
Rush was a substitute Member of the South East Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning
Committee.
26

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Standing declarations of interest were noted for :
Councillors Tom Ashton and Alison Austin in their respective roles as Members of
Lincolnshire County Council.
Councillors Tom Ashton, Michael Cooper and Neill Hastie in their roles as Members of
the South East Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee, Councillor Jonathan
Noble as a Substitute Member of that Committee and Councillor Alison Austin as the
County Council representative on that Committee.
Councillors Tom Ashton, Frank Pickett, Peter Bedford and Michael Cooper in their
respective roles as representatives on the Internal Drainage Boards.
Individual declarations of interest were then made as follows:
With respect to Planning Application B/19/0068 Councillor Yvonne Stevens declared
that she had viewed the site 15 years previously to consider purchasing the land.
27

PUBLIC QUESTIONS

No public questions had been submitted.

Page 67

Planning Committee
20 August 2019

28

PLANNING APPLICATION B 19 0068

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of terrace block of 5 three storey
dwellings with new access and associated site works.
118 Church Road Boston PE21 0LG
Mrs B Orrey
The Senior Planning Officer presented the report and advised Members that the visuals
and letter from the applicant received after publication of the agenda pack, which
Members confirmed they had received, were not a true reflection of the application and
that it was the application as it was presented at the meeting that the Committee had to
consider.
The following representations, received following publication of the agenda pack, were
reported to the meeting:
 A letter of objection giving the grounds as insufficient parking in an overpopulated
area and the danger to cyclists.
 8 letters of support on the grounds that the proposal would improve the town; the
design would tie together existing styles; development would remove an eyesore and
stop trouble taking place; and approval of the contemporary design.
Mr J Cartwright then addressed the Committee and spoke in objection to the proposals
on the following grounds:
 Loss of privacy and sunlight to neighbours, whom he had discussed the proposals
with, as the block would dominate neighbouring properties, especially the bungalows
and properties on Windsor Close;
 The site was too small and the proposed dwellings would have a negative impact, as
they would be out of character in an area where none had flat roofs, all being twostorey with gable roofs, and permission for the site next door had been limited to 2storey.
 Tandem parking was not ideal, particularly at this point where there was a bend on a
busy road.
 There was no objection to the redevelopment of the site, but the quality of this design
would lower the standards of the area.
The applicant, Mrs B Orrey, then addressed the Committee and described her vision of
the provision of low carbon properties with affordable housing. This site had once been
used as commercial premises and permission had been granted previously for a house
in multiple occupation (HMO) to house nine people. The site was an eyesore and
security fencing had had to be erected. The proposed dwellings were modern and
would appeal to new buyers and encourage carbon neutral travel, with provision of
electric vehicle charging points, bicycle stores and ability to walk to local facilities.
Mrs Orrey asserted that everything had been done in line with the Committee’s wishes,
including the use of traditional materials, alteration of the roof pitch and frames, and
local traders and suppliers had been used. The proposal would encourage more new
ideas and would be a focal point in the same way as the new college building.

Page 68

Planning Committee
20 August 2019

The applicant’s agent, Mr C Wicks, shared the speaking time with the applicant and
quoted views previously expressed by a Planning Officer dealing with the application,
who had confirmed that the separation distances and the mass and scale of the
proposals were acceptable, pointing out that there were ten terrace dwellings nearby of
a greater width. The design was modern; this was the way forward and it was
unfortunate that the potential of the design had not been recognised.
It was moved by Councillor Jonathan Noble and seconded by Councillor Brian Rush that
the application be refused on the grounds of the previous reasons for refusal, in line with
the Planning Officer’s recommendation, that it contravened Policy 2 (Development
Management) and Policy 3 (Design of New Development) of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan and would not accord with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).
Following debate regarding the submission of late changes to the application, and the
Growth Manager’s confirmation that these changes would need to be the subject of the
due process of consultation before they could be considered, Members discussed
deferring the application.
It was then proposed by Councillor Peter Bedford that the application be deferred in
order that the amended application could be considered at a future meeting and this was
seconded by Councillor Alison Austin.
At this point, Councillor Brian Rush confirmed that he was withdrawing his support for
the proposal to refuse planning permission in favour of deferring the application.
Councillor Paul Skinner then seconded the proposal to refuse planning permission.
The proposal to defer the application was then taken as an amendment and was carried.
Vote: 11 for, 2 against.
The substantive motion to defer was then put to the vote.
Vote: 11 for, 2 against.
RESOLVED: That the application be deferred in order that the due process of
consultation can be carried out on the amended application and considered at a
future meeting.
29

PLANNING APPLICATION B 18 0370

Erection of 3 no. three storey apartment blocks consisting of 55 no. flats including
some amenity facilities, following demolition of existing public house.
Former New Castle Inn and adjoining land on Lister Way 36 Fydell Street Boston
PE21 8LF
Dhedhi, Alrahmin Trust
The Growth Manager presented the application and reported the 10 additional
representations had been received since the publication of the agenda pack, objecting

Page 69

Planning Committee
20 August 2019

to the lack of car parking in the area and the ‘zero parking’ proposal within the
application.
The applicant’s agent, Mr C Lilley, addressed the Committee saying this was a
substantial vacant site that had been a long-standing eyesore. It was in a perfect
location for all amenities and transport links. The high quality design, including
landscaping and a private courtyard, would provide living accommodation of exceptional
quality along with a number of affordable homes and a section 106 contribution, so
adding to the rejuvenation of Boston.
Mr Lilley stated that the site was in a highly accessible part of Boston. No parking was
proposed so as not to impede traffic flow; there would not be the conflict that a limited
number of parking spaces could cause and there would be no junctions needed to exit
the site. The existing access would have removable bollards for refuse collection and
other vehicles and they would be able to turn on the site without compromising highway
safety. Also, storage for scooters and cycles would be provided. The Highway Authority
fully supported the proposal.
Councillor Paul Goodale, speaking as the Local Ward Member, considered the design
and plan acceptable, but could not accept the proposal for zero parking provision, as the
residents would certainly have cars and there was a significant level of illegal parking in
the area already. Councillor Goodale was also concerned about the adverse impact on
the amenity of the area in terms of the overshadowing of neighbouring residential
properties.
During debate, other Members raised concerns regarding the size and scale of the
proposal and the adverse impact on neighbouring residential amenity, particularly
overshadowing of the houses opposite, as well as concerns regarding inadequate bin
storage and the flood risk sequential test not having been met.
In particular, Members considered that, due to the ‘zero’ provision of parking on the site,
the proposal would lead to a significant adverse impact on traffic congestion in an area
already congested, as it was inevitable that the residents of the 55 proposed units would
own cars. Some Members also commented on the scale of the development and the
potential impact on the character of the area in relation to visual intrusion. References to
the proposals being contrary to policies 2 and 3 of the Development Plan were made.
Some Members commented that the design was of good quality and the
accommodation was much needed; that the scale of the proposal was acceptable and
that parking was the only issue, with other developments recently approved having been
required to provide parking spaces. Other Members considered that zero provision of
parking would not be problematic, that it was in keeping with the area and nearby underutilised car parks would be used, and pointed out that no objections had been put
forward by the Highway Authority.
However, most Members considered that the proposal was not acceptable on the
grounds of the adverse impact of zero parking provision and the scale of the proposal.
It was then proposed by Councillor Paul Goodale and seconded by Councillor Jonathan
Noble that planning permission be refused.

Page 70

Planning Committee
20 August 2019

[Councillor Brian Rush left the meeting at 11.35 am]
The Committee then adjourned temporarily to allow the Growth Manager to formulate
the wording of the reasons for refusal, which was then agreed.
Vote: 8 for, 4 against
RESOLVED: That planning permission be refused, contrary to the Planning
Officer’s recommendations, on the following grounds:
1. The proposal, by virtue of the lack of parking provision, would provide
insufficient facilities for future residents and would be likely to exacerbate
existing parking pressures within the area to an unacceptable degree. The
proposals would therefore be contrary to policies 2, 3 and 36 of the Local Plan
and the principles of sustainable development as advocated by the NPPF.
2. By virtue of its amount, scale, size and density, the development would result
in a visually intrusive and dominant form of development having an adverse
impact upon the character of the area, and the amenities of existing properties
in the area (in particular those in Fydell Street by way of overshadowing),
contrary to policies 2, and 3 of the Local Plan and the principles of good
design and sustainable development as advocated by the NPPF.
30

APPEAL DECISIONS

A Report by the Growth Manager in respect of planning applications:


B/18/0272 Burnham Lane and Marsh Lane Skeldyke Kirton Boston



B/18/0434 Land at Puttock Gate Fosdyke Boston

Members noted that the Planning Inspector had allowed the appeal in respect of
B/18/0434 despite the application site being outside
31

DELEGATED DECISION LIST

A standing report by the Growth Manager. Members agreed that this item was no
longer required to be published as part of the agenda, as the information was already
published and made available to Members each week.
32

APPEALS RECEIVED

A standing report by the Growth Manager. Members agreed that this item was no
longer required to be published as part of the agenda, as the information was already
published and made available to Members each week.

The Meeting ended at 12.20 pm

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

Comparison of the schemes:
The following images seek to provide a comparison between the refused scheme, the current
application as submitted, and the current application as now proposed - This shows how the
scheme has been evolved to its current state:
B/18/0263 (Refused)

B/19/0068 (As originally submitted)

Page 73

B/19/0068 (Current proposals)

Page 74

Agenda Item 3

PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0307

Outline application for residential development
(1 plot) with all matters (Access, Appearance,
Landscaping, Layout and Scale) reserved for
later approval (amended application form)

Rear of Gunby House, 21 Sibsey Road, Boston,
PE21 9QY

Applicant: Mrs D Moore

Page 75

Page 76

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Planning Committee - 10 December 2019
Reference No: B/19/0307
Expiry Date:

06-Nov-2019

Extension of Time:

16-Dec-2019

Application Type:

Outline Planning Permission

Proposal:

Outline application for residential development (1 plot) with all matters
(Access, Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale) reserved for
later approval (amended application form)

Site:

Rear of Gunby House, 21 Sibsey Road, Boston, PE21 9QY

Applicant:

Mrs D Moore

Agent:

G R Merchant Ltd

Ward:

Fishtoft

Parish:

Case Officer:

Richard Whittaker

Third Party Reps:

Link to Application :

B/19/0307

Recommendation:

Refusal

Page 77

Fishtoft Parish Council
None.

1.0

Reason for Report

1.1

The Applicant is identified on the submitted forms as an Elected Member, and in the
opinion of the Monitoring Officer - having reviewed this against the requirements of
2.21(d) of Part 3a (Officer Scheme of Delegation) of the Councils constitution – the
application should be determined by the Planning Committee in the interests of
transparency.

2.0

The Application Site

2.1

The application site is located to the north of Boston, on the eastern side of Sibsey
Road. The site hosts an existing two-storey brick built detached dwellinghouse with a
slate covered pitched roof. There is a large garden to the rear and vehicular access to
the front opening onto Sibsey Road.

2.2

The site forms part of an existing pattern of residential properties stretching along the
east side of Sibsey Road. The pattern of this is primarily single dwellings within
generous plots fronting the road, with the exception of number 25A which is located to
the rear of number 25. This was approved under application B09/0503/88. Pilgrim
Hospital and agricultural fields are located on the opposite side of Sibsey Road. To the
east of site are further agricultural fields.

3.0

The Proposal

3.1

The application seeks outline planning permission, with all matters reserved, for one
dwelling within the rear garden curtilage of 21 Gunby House.

3.2

Indicative plans have been submitted to support the application. These plans illustrate
a single storey dwelling featuring a pitched roof with gable ends to the sides and
projections to the rear and the western side. There is also an associated triple garage
outbuilding which features a pitched roof. The proposed dwelling would be to the rear
of Gunby House with the associated garage to be located in the intervening space.

3.3

The indicative plans detail a dwelling that features a width of 10.2 metres and depth of
5.8 metres. The rear projection being a length of 3.0 metres and the side projection
being 2.2 metres. This dwelling would reach a total height of 6.7 metres and a height
to eaves of 3 metres. The total footprint would measure a total of 58.06 square metres.

3.4

The associated garage would total a width of 4.8 metres and a depth of 3.2 metres with
a total footprint of 15.36 square metres. The garage would reach a total height of 4.9
metres with a height to eaves of 2.6 metres.

3.5

The application has been duly considered against the following plans:




Drawing No. 3443-18.02A - Proposed Indicative Site and Location Plans
Drawing No. 3443-18.03A - Bungalow & Detached Double Garage (Indicative)
Drawing No. 3443-18.04 - Proposed Triple Garage Floor Plan & Elevations

4.0

Relevant History

4.1

No planning history relevant to this application site, however, there is some relevant
history from within the locality which is discussed later in this report.

Page 78

5.0

Relevant Planning Policy and Guidance

5.1

The application is within the settlement boundary of Boston. The following South East
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) Policies are considered to be relevant:
Policy 1 – Spatial Strategy
Policy 2 – Development Management
Policy 3 – Design of New Development
Policy 4 – Approach to Flood Risk
Policy 10 – Meeting Assessed Housing Requirements
Policy 11 – Distribution of New Housing
Policy 17 – Providing a Mix of Housing
Policy 28 – The Natural Environment
Policy 30 – Pollution
Policy 31 – Climate Change
Policy 36 – Parking

5.2

Other material considerations:
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019.
National Planning Policy Guidance (online resource)

6.0

Representations

6.1

Since the proposal has been publicised no representations have been received from
the public.

7.0

Consultations

7.1

Fishtoft Parish Council – received 24 September 2019
 Members have concerns regarding the proposed new entrance being opposite
Pilgrim Hospital exit, loss of so many trees also a concern.

7.2

Witham Fourth Internal Drainage Board – received 19 September 2019
 A Board maintained watercourse exists on the eastern boundary of the site to which
BYELAWS and the LAND DRAINAGE ACT applies:
 No person may erect any building or structure (including walls and fences),
whether temporary or permanent, or plant any tree, shrub, willow or other
similar growth within 9 metres of the top edge of the watercourse/edge of
the culvert without the prior consent of the Board.
 Board's consent is required to discharge surface water to a watercourse
(open or piped).
 Board's consent is required to discharge treated water to a watercourse
(open or piped).
 If there is any change to the surface water or treated water disposal
arrangements, please contact the Board.

7.3

Highways and LLFA – received 25 September 2019
 I understand that this is an Outline Planning Application for the erection of a single
dwelling with all matters (access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale)
reserved for later approval, therefore the details as shown on drawing number:
3443-18-02A dated December 2018, is indicative only.

Page 79







In principle, the proposed development would seem acceptable and would not be
expected to have a severe residual cumulative impact upon the existing network of
upon highway safety.
Therefore, in order to support application of reserved matters, that application shall
show detailed arrangements of the new access with clear visibility splays of 2.0
metres x 65.0 metres in accordance with Manual for Streets for a 40mph
carriageway, so that drivers intending entering the highway may have sufficient
visibility of approaching traffic to judge if it is safe to complete the manoeuvre. The
access road (private drive) is to be 3.5 metres wide minimum with sufficient space
within the site to allow vehicles to enter and leave in a forward gear, in the interests
of highway safety, including a bin storage area close to the existing highway for
kerbside collection, as a refuse truck will not enter a private drive.
Additionally, consideration should be made for suitable parking provision where 3
parking spaces for a dwelling with four or more bedrooms are proposed.
As this is a Minor Planning Application for a single dwelling, there will not be a
requirement for SuDS as a means of surface water disposal, however, we would
need to be satisfied that a suitable system can be provided and detailed, to manage
the dispersal of surface water to protect the householder, adjoining properties or
surrounding land.

8.0

Planning Issues and Discussions

8.1

The key planning issues in the determination of this application are:









Planning History
Principle of Development
Character and Context
Flood Risk and Drainage
Access and Highway Safety
Impact on Residential Amenity
Effect on trees
Impact on Air Quality

Planning History
8.2

8.3

Whilst there is no planning history relevant to this site there is history of similar
applications within the surrounding area. These include:


Number 25A Sibsey Road, (which is a dwelling located to the rear of number 25)
which was approved under application B09/0503/88 (1988).



Number 17 Sibsey Road, which has twice applied for permission to erect an
independent dwelling within its rear garden of its curtilage. Both applications being
refused with the decisions dismissed on appeal under APP/Z2505/A/03/1128768
(2003) and SB/BLT/2354T (1996).

It is considered that the planning history for 25a is afforded minimal weight, but the
existence of this dwelling is considered as part of the established character of the area.
With regard to the Appeals at no.17, on both occasions the principle of residential
development had been found acceptable as the sites has been situated within the
settlement boundary. However, the reasoning for the refusals was due to the impact
upon character of the area due to the increase in density of housing that would arise
from the completion of the works.

Page 80

Principle of Development
8.4

SELLP Policy 1 sets out a hierarchy of settlements and states that development will be
permitted within the settlement boundaries of these respective settlements providing
the proposed development supports the designated role of the settlement in which it is
to be executed.

8.5

The application site is located within the Boston settlement boundary (sub-regional
centre) and will help support Boston’s role as a sub-regional centre by making a modest
contribution to the supply of housing in the borough. It is considered to be in a relatively
sustainable location; relatively close proximity to local services, shops and community
facilities. As such, the principle of residential development on this site is acceptable
and compliant with SELLP Policy 1, subject to consideration of the subsequent matters.

8.6

This is further reinforced by the two appeal decisions at no.17 wherein they recognise
the acceptability of residential development in principle.
Character and Context

8.7

SELLP 2 states that proposals requiring planning permission for development will be
permitted provided that sustainable development considerations are met. These
include size, scale, layout, density and impact on the amenity, trees, character and
appearance of the area and the relationship to existing development and land uses as
well as the quality of its design and its orientation. This accords with paragraph 127 of
the National Planning Policy Framework, which contains similar provisions.

8.8

SELLP Policy 3 states that all development proposals will create a sense of place by;
respecting the density, scale, visual closure, landmarks, views, massing of
neighbouring buildings and the surrounding area.

8.9

It is noted the character of the area is defined by a predominantly linear frontage pattern
of design running alongside Sibsey Road, the exception being the existence of 25a.
Whilst this contradict the predominant pattern, it is nonetheless an existing property
which sits comfortably within an appropriately sized plot and it is considered the
individual dwelling does not significantly alter the existing character of the area
identified above.

8.10

Whilst the application is in outline form only, and has all matters reserved for later
considerations, the application is accompanied by indicative details which attempt to
demonstrate how a dwelling would fit within the site and meet the identified policy
requirements. From the indicative plans it can be ascertained that the proposed
dwelling would be single storey in nature with a garage outbuilding located between
Gunby House and the proposed dwelling. When viewed from Sibsey Road the
proposed dwelling would be situated at a distance and location where it would be
almost completely obscured, with the proposed garage only slightly visible although
this also would be heavily obscured by both existing and proposed tree cover.

8.11

Nevertheless a material consideration are the two appeal decisions for similar
developments at an adjacent site (appeal reference APP/Z2505/A/03/1128768 from
2003 and SB/BLT/2354T from 1996, both relating to 17 Sibsey Road). Although raising
no objection to the principle of residential development it did raise concerns regarding
the change the development would have on the pattern of density.

Page 81

8.12

The architectural style of the proposed structures shown indicatively would generally
be considered as being consistent with the theme of other properties found locally.
Further, it is noted that as a result of the retention of established vegetation and the
presence of existing properties, the new dwelling would have only minimal visual
presence when viewed from public vantage points outside of the site.

8.13

However, Officers have significant concerns that the introduction of a dwelling in the
backland position identified would be generally at odds with the existing character of
the area which is predominantly derived of frontage plots of a linear fashion. The
exception being the property at 25a. Officers do not believe that the presence of this
dwelling should provide an over-riding justification for allowing further dwellings in a
similar fashion – if this were to occur, the overall cumulative effect would be one which
has a significant adverse effect on the overall area.

8.13

The impact of a tandem backland form of development such as this would considerably
alter the area in terms of character and context. This proposal would reduce the
spacious garden of Gunby House – a further theme of properties in the area being
generous properties in proportionately sized plots. Thus the general density of
development would be increased. The development of this backland site would
contradict the linear spatial pattern of development in this area and would further
diminish the established character. This would be contrary to the aims set out in SELLP
Policy 2 and SELLP Policy 3. Whilst it could be argued that a single dwelling would
have little harm, either visually or spatially, the introduction of a dwelling would make
further submissions for similar arrangements more difficult to resist. The cumulative
effect of which could be the significant erosion of the established spatial pattern. In
addition, further effects would be the increase in the density of dwellings which again
would be out of keeping with the urban-edge location of the site wherein there is a
transition to/from areas with a more rural feel.

8.14

It is noted that this view has previously been taken by the Planning Inspectorate in
relation to Appeal decisions within the locality – under the previous planning policy
context. Whilst these decisions were concluded at two separate points significantly in
the past (one in 2003 and the other in 1996), there have been no developments such
as the current proposal approved in the area since. It is considered therefore that the
findings can still be afforded a considerable level of material weight within the planning
decision for this application. In Officers view, these decisions reinforce the view that
has been taken in respect of this proposed development.

8.15

Overall, it is considered that the introduction of a new dwelling in this location would
adversely impact upon the context and character of the area, thus being contrary to
policies 2 & 3 of the SELLP and the principles of good design and sustainable
development advocated by the NPPF.
Flood Risk and Drainage

8.16

SELLP Policy 4 seeks to ensure that new development is not unnecessarily exposed
to flood risk, and does not increase flood risk elsewhere. It identifies the process by
which planning applications in Flood Zones 2 and 3 will be considered, and sets out
particular requirements for certain types of applications.

8.17

The application site is in an area identified as being within Environment Agency Flood
Zone 3, a ‘danger for all/danger for most’ flood hazard. As such the application has
been accompanied by a site-specific Flood Risk Assessment (author GR Merchant Ltd,
referenced November 2019).

Page 82

8.18

Given the outline nature of the application the FRA acknowledges the site is within
Flood Zone 3. The FRA proposes that the ground floor living accommodation for the
two storey dwellings be set in accordance with the Environment Agency’s
recommendations i.e. that the ground floor to be raised 0.5 metres above the existing
ground level.

8.19

The Local Lead Flood Authority have been consulted with regard to the application of
SUDS in the development. The LLFA have responded stating that they would need to
be satisfied that a suitable system can be provided and detailed, to manage the
dispersal of surface water to protect the householder, adjoining properties or
surrounding land.

8.20

Taking into account the FRA it is considered the proposed development would not in
principle pose a flood risk. It is considered expedient to secure the mitigation measures
by planning condition to ensure the development remains acceptable.

8.21

Witham Fourth Internal Drainage Board have responded to consultation by putting
forward informative details regarding the discharge of surface water and the location of
development with regard to drains. The agent has responded to this by stating that the
9 metre byelaw will be respected throughout this proposal, surface water will be drained
via soakaways and foul water will be disposed of via the public foul sewer. If none of
these proposals are feasible then the agent has indicated that the drainage board will
be contacted for advice.

8.22

These matters could be dealt with at Reserved Matters stage or by conditions.
Access and Highway Safety

8.23

This outline application does not include ‘access’ which is a matter reserved for later
approval, however an indicative plan has been submitted highlighting the intention to
form a new access on the site. The Highway Authority has reviewed the proposal and
advises that a vehicular access be installed with a minimum width of 3.5 metres with
clear vision splays of 2.0 metres by 65.0 metres to account for the 40mph speed limit
of Sibsey Road. The Highway Authority have also stated that parking provision of 3no
spaces would need to be set out for a dwelling of 4 bedrooms or more. The indicative
plans feature space for 3no vehicles within the garage. This would indicate the scheme
would be able to accommodate the number of parking spaces required under SELLP
36.

8.24

Given that there are no objections from the Highway Authority it is considered that there
is enough space for the safe manoeuvre of vehicles to be carried out on site if a
development such as this would go ahead. These matters could be dealt with at
Reserved Matters stage or by conditions.
Impact on Residential Amenity

8.25

SELLP Policy 2 states that proposals requiring planning permission for development
will be permitted provided that sustainable development considerations are met. These
include impact on the amenity of the site itself and neighbouring sites as well as the
impact upon neighbouring land uses by reason of noise, odour, disturbance or visual
intrusion. SELLP Policy 3 states that development proposals will demonstrate how
residential amenity will be secured.

Page 83

8.26

The NPPF seeks to ensure a good standard of amenity for all existing and future
occupants of land and buildings

8.27

Given the application is in outline form seeking the principle of development, a full
assessment will be undertaken when the design, height and scale of the dwellings are
known i.e. at the reserved matters stage. Nevertheless, it is noted there is a degree of
separation that exists between the indicatively shown dwelling and the existing
neighbouring properties to demonstrate that the quantum of development can be
accommodated on the site.
Effect on trees

8.28

Some tree removal is proposed within the indicative plan. An arboricultural method
statement and a Tree Protection Plan have both been submitted along with the
application to illustrate how development will take place in a manner that would retain
the arboricultural character of the area. This would involve protective barriers and
ground protection to ensure the preservation of existing trees on the site that would not
be removed during the construction process. The trees that would be removed (on the
northern and southern boundaries to the rear of the site) would be replaced by new
trees that would be located between Gunby House and the proposed garage and to
the south of the proposed dwelling. Overall, it is considered that the effect on trees
would be minor in nature. These matters could be dealt with at Reserved Matters stage
or by conditions.
Impact on air quality

8.29

SELLP Policy 30 requires the issue of air quality to be considered as part of any
application. In this instance it is considered the proposed development would not have
a significant impact on air quality.

9.0

Summary and Conclusion

9.1

The site lies within Boston’s Settlement Boundary and therefore is acceptable in
principle and would make a modest contribution to the supply of future housing needs
in the Borough.

9.2

The development would result in the introduction of a dwelling located in a backland
position and which would be contrary to the established characteristics of the area. This
would increase the apparent density of development in this area and would generally
result in a development that would be at odds with the established spatial pattern of
properties.

9.3

Within this area, two similar applications have been refused and upheld at Appeal for
similar reasons and whilst these were considered under a different policy context, it is
considered that they can still be afforded a significant degree of material weight. These
decisions found that development in the manner proposed by the current application
would have an unacceptable impact on the area.

9.4

Whilst the development would be acceptable in all other respects, it is considered that
the scheme would remain contrary to the development plan and that there are no
material considerations which would indicate a different view to be taken.

Page 84

9.5

It is concluded that the proposal would have a harmful impact on the character and
appearance of the area and thus the development would be contrary to Policies 2 and
3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and Section 12 of the National
Planning Policy Framework which seeks to secure a high standard of design that is
sympathetic to the character of an area.

10.0

Recommendation

10.1

It is recommended that outline planning permission is refused for the following reason.
The proposed dwelling, by reason of its position and the characteristics of the site,
would result in an unacceptable form of backland development. The tandem
arrangement of dwellings (between the host property and the new dwelling) that would
result would detract from the established spatial pattern of development. Furthermore,
it would increase the apparent density of development at the expense of garden space.
The resultant development would therefore be at odds with established character and
would further diminish it in an unacceptable way. As such the development would be
contrary to Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and
Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework which seeks to secure a high
standard of design that is sympathetic to the character of an area.

Refused Plans




Drawing No. 3443-18.02A - Proposed Indicative Site and Location Plans
Drawing No. 3443-18.03A - Bungalow & Detached Double Garage (Indicative)
Drawing No. 3443-18.04 - Proposed Triple Garage Floor Plan & Elevations

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority has taken account of the
guidance in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to seek
to secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the Borough.

Page 85

This page is intentionally left blank

